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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

On behalf of the Board (“Board”) of Directors (“Directors”,
each being a “Director”), | am pleased to announce
that Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
(“Company” or “Tengy Environmental”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) recorded solid financial results for
the year ended 31 December 2017 (“Year”).

The Group is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-sized
precipitators to customers in various industries.

The Group is with over 19 years of industry experience and
continue to innovate in industrial technologies.

Due to the decrease of the Group's operating income
during the Year by 17.2% to approximately RMB792.2
million, the profit before tax during the Year decreased
by 16.0% compared to the corresponding period of 2016,
to approximately RMB114.5 million. Meanwhile, the profit
attributable to shareholders of the Company (“Shareholders”,
each being a “Shareholder”) was approximately RMB83.2
million, representing a decrease of 21.2% compared to the
corresponding period of 2016.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Approximately 81% of the revenue for the Year of the Group
is from the sales of electrostatic precipitator (70%) and
electrostatic-bag composite precipitator (11%), amounting
to RMB542.6 million and RMB88.8 million respectively.

The Group believes that, with its leveraging years of
industry experience and continual innovation in industrial
technologies, the Group can obtain more new projects from
customers in the national electricity industries and also from
other industries due to its enhanced reputation as reliable
atmospheric pollution control solution provider.

Besides, the Group possesses a competitive advantage
over existing market competitors as well as new entrants
in new projects due to its extensive project experience
over the years.

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC") currently continues
to strengthen its effort in environmental protection by strictly
control the emission of air pollutants due to the fact that the
large amount of major pollutants produced during the coal
combustion process of coal-fired power plants, including
particulates, sulfur dioxide, nitrogen oxides and etc. A
stringent accountability system was rolled out with the
aim to achieve the governance effect.

With increasingly stringent environmental protection
inspection, the environmental protection equipment which
does not meet the requirements must be upgraded and
modified immediately, which in turn will give significant rise
to a certain demand for precipitators.

Looking forward, more effort will be put by the Group
to enhance its research and development capabilities,
to develop new technologies and to expand the product
portfolio.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

Simultaneously, the Group will seek for the growing EiFRIE - AEE S KA BN MEINTHRR
opportunities in the air pollution control solutions industry S5 AR ER/THEEHERAKE - BAE
of the PRC, as well as of overseas markets to expand its R TETHHNTHMHEE -

market share in different markets.

Last, on behalf of the Board, | would like to thank the &% @ RAZERREZEE - X0 R B2 E K
management team and employees for their tireless efforts MESRNTHE N  URZSBRERIEEE—HI
and | sincerely thank the Shareholders and investors for their R A& @ (SEE T -

continuing trust in and support to the Group.

The Group will continue to seize market opportunities, ZAEBEFEEICETHEEE @ REEXRZK

protect the blue sky and clear water and build a century- {T#EBHFKZ |
lasting Tengy!
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Financial Highlights

MM E

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016 Change
—E—+tF —E—RF boif)
RMB’000 RMB'000
Results ES AR® T AR®ET T
Revenue Weas 792,152 956,432 17.2%
Profit before tax A Al 114,483 136,314 -16.0%
Income tax expense FriSmif (31,319) (30,817) 1.6%
Profit and total comprehensive FREF REEBA
income for the year FEkE] 83,164 105,497 21.2%
Earnings per share attributable [SUNCIE- SR S o VDN
to ordinary equity holders of FEE T RER
the parent
— For profit for the year —FWaH 0.62 0.78 -20.5%
As at 31 December
R+=-—HA=+-—H
2017 2016 Change
—E—+F —E—REF o
RMB’000 RMB'000
Results E4 AR® T ARETTT
Total assets BERE 1,639,560 1,691,361 3.1%
Net current assets MENEEFE 528,638 503,076 5.1%
Total assets less current liabilities BELZERRSEE 689,990 606,826 13.7%
Total liabilities BEER 949,570 1,084,535 -12.4%
Total equity M AR RE 689,990 606,826 13.7%
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—H
2017 2016
—E2—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
Financial Statistics B i BiE ARETT AREFIT
Current ratio et 7 BN L R i) 1.6 1.5
Gearing ratio Mete 2 BB & Rz 9.0% -6.9%
Inventory turnover days (days) Mot @ FERERE(KR) W) 302.0 249.4
Trade receivables turnover days (days) More 4 B ZREUFIAFE R E
(it 213.1 151.8
Trade payables turnover days (days) et 5 B 5 BN RIEFE R
(Gl 230.2 188.9
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Notes:

Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities

Gearing ratio = (total bank loan — cash and cash equivalents)/total
equity x 100%

Inventory turnover days = 365 days/(costs of sales/average balance
of inventory (net off impairment))

Trade receivables turnover days = 365 days/(revenue/average balance
of trade receivables balance (net off impairment))

Trade payables turnover days = 365 days/(cost of sales/average trade
payables balance)

RBLLE=RBEERBDAE

BABBHER=-(RTEREE-BeRReEEN)
T EFEX100%

FEEABRY=365K " (HEXK TFEFHHEHEN
BRIR(E))

45 R FIEEE R =366K, (KwE 5 KK
BB R (FNERIRIE))

RN FEFERE=366K (HERK,EHRE
NFIAFHEER)
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB A wm M AT

OVERVIEW

The Group is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-sized
precipitators to customers in various industries. The Group
has leveraging years of industry experience and continual
innovation in industrial technologies.

During the Year, the Group generated its revenue primarily
from (i) environmental protection equipment contracts; (ii)
sales of goods; and (iii) rendering of services.

Environmental protection equipment contracts represented
tailor-made and integrated atmospheric pollution control
solutions offered by the Group to its customers, comprising
equipment procurement and manufacturing, supervision
of installation and commissioning, customer training, and
repair and maintenance to its customers on a project
basis. During the Year, the Group mainly offered four
types of precipitators: electrostatic precipitators, bag filter
precipitators, electrostatic-bag composite precipitators and
wet electrostatic precipitators.

The Group's sales of goods represented sales of materials,
including raw materials, spare parts and components and
scrap materials to related parties or independent third parties.

The Group’s rendering of services represented its technology
consultancy services to its customers on a stand-alone
basis, which includes repair and replacement, and on-site
engineering and maintenance services to those projects
which were not constructed by the Group.

Precipitators are widely installed at coal-fired power
plants, metallurgical plants, paper mills and other industrial
production plants. As such, the Group has an extensive
range of customers including the project owners of power
plants and industrial production plants, or contractors who
undertake the construction work of power plants and
industrial production plants.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The PRC is currently the second largest economy in the
world. Up to now, coal consumption is still in a dominant
position in the energy consumption composition of the PRC.
Under such circumstances, the most severe atmospheric
pollution problem in the PRC is coal-burning pollution, which
mainly consists of pollutants such as dust, smoke dust,

10 Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B A W M AT

sulfur dioxide and nitrogen oxides. Since the 21st century,
the emission volume of air pollutants, such as smoke dust
(dust) and sulfur dioxide, has generally declined. This is
mainly due to the fact that the PRC continues to strengthen
its effort in environmental protection by strictly control the
emission of air pollutants in recent years.

Efforts on the environmental protection inspection were
enhanced. A stringent accountability system was rolled out
with the aim to achieve the governance effect. In 2016, the
State Council established a leading group, under which a
central environmental protection inspection team has been
formed and has inspected 16 provinces (autonomous regions
and municipalities) in 2 stages. The rectification efforts are
strong and in a wide range. On 14 February 2017, the Ministry
of Environmental Protection of the PRC further carried out
a special inspection regarding the air quality for the first
quarter of 2017, efforts on supervision and its efficiency
were significantly enhanced. Meanwhile, it is also expressly
stated in the 2017 Report on the Work of the Government
of the PRC that the urgency and importance of atmospheric
control is of prime importance. With increasingly stringent
environmental protection inspection, the environmental
protection equipment which does not meet the requirements
must be upgraded and modified immediately, which in turn
will give rise to a certain demand for precipitators.

The Group believes that leveraging on its track record and
advanced technologies together with its stable workplaces
and staff, its ability to secure new projects will be improved.
Moreover, the Group has completed various precipitators-
related works in the metallurgy industry in 2017. This laid
a solid foundation for the Group to secure orders in the
metallurgy industry.

Forthe Year, therevenue andthe profitand total comprehensive
income of the Group amounted to approximately RMB792.2
million and RMB83.2 million respectively. During the Year, the
Group’s gross profit amounted to approximately RMB199.1
million, representing a decrease of 14.9% as compared with
approximately RMB234.0 million for the same period of the
year 2016; while the gross margin increased by 0.6% from
the previous year to 25.1%. This decrease in the revenue
and the profit and total comprehensive income for the year
of the Group was primarily due to that (1) G20 Summit was
held in the PRC in 2016 and many projects were completed
earlier before the summit; and (2) the completion dates of
certain large-scale projects originally scheduled to be within
2017 were delayed to 2018 because of the customers.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB A wm M AT

For the Year, the value of the Group’s new contracts (which
represents the aggregate value of the contracts it entered
into during a specified period) was approximately RMB1,332
million. As at 31 December 2017, the Group's backlog
(including applicable value-added tax) (which represents
the total estimated contract value of work that remained
to be completed pursuant to outstanding projects as of a
certain date and assuming performance in accordance with
the terms of the contract) was approximately RMB2,454.5
million.

The Group's profit before tax for the Year decreased to
approximately RMB114.5 million and profits attributable to
owners of the parent company of the Company decreased to
approximately RMB83.2million, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 16.0% and 21.2% respectively. The aforesaid
downturn was mainly due to the decrease in the revenue
of 17.2% to approximately RMB792.2 million for the Year.

At the time of raising the amount of product sales, the
Group spent great effort to enhance cost management to
make its products and solutions more cost competitive. The
atmospheric pollution control solutions offered by the Group
mainly comprise the atmospheric pollution control devices
designed and manufactured on its own. The Group possesses
the qualifications and expertise in manufacture and supply of
the key atmospheric pollution control system of the projects
it undertakes based on customised design proposals. The
Group is dedicated to improving manufacturing process
and management system by managing the product quality
and operation, reducing energy consumption and assessing
the environmental impact in accordance with international
standards. The quantitative management, environmental
management and quality management systems of the Group
were awarded with a number of ISO certificates. These
systems help the company estimate costs, smoothen project
operations and improve operating efficiency.

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had 37 registered patents
(including 3 invention patents and 34 utility model patents)
in the PRC. Based on the strong design and manufacturing
capabilities, the Group primarily provides comprehensive
atmospheric pollution control solutions to its customers.
The Group offers a wide range of models of electrostatic
precipitators which support electricity generators with
capacity spanning from 6.25MW to over 1000MW. The
Group is one of the few manufacturers in the PRC which
provides electrostatic precipitators for single generator unit
with capacity of T000MW or above.

12 Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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Management Discussion and Analysis

B A W M AT

As at 31 December 2017, the Group maintained a total
of 605 full-time employees (2016: 640). The remuneration
payable to the Group's employees includes basic wages,
bonuses and other staff benefit. The Group conducts periodic
performance reviews for the employees and determine
their remuneration based on factors including qualifications,
contributions, years of experience and performance.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The revenue of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB792.2 million for the Year representing a decrease of
17.2% from approximately RMB956.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016. The decrease was mainly due
to the delay of the completion dates of certain large-scale
projects to 2018.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the Group's
revenue by segment and each item as a percentage of
revenue for the respective years indicated:

R_E—+F+-A=+—H  KEBEHE605
Z22BEE(ZT—/NF : 640%) - BN FAE
EREENFMEEEARTE A RHEMETRE
o AEBTHRFNEENKE @ BEEMNE
FE - B5R - FERRBRERXRETMHMNEH -

g JEI)
e 2

AREEHNWFERBEE - T— X E+-_A=+—H
IFFEMHARKEIBCATETHAD17.2% 2K
FENHARKETIO 2 AET - BEHAREBILITIE
AREEARIBEHEE —T— \FRKAME -

TRBTIFRE AR EES HE S s
ARERDEUENE S -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t—HLEE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE-RF
RMB’'000 % | RMB’000 %
AR¥T T ARETTT
(restated)
(&%)
Revenue U &
Environmental protection IRREBEER (M)
equipment contracts (note 1) 778,757 97% 952,897 98%
Sales of goods HEE M 12,943 2% 3,529 1%
Rendering of services IR AR 452 1% 6 1%
Total HaEt 792,152 100% | 956,432 100%

revenue from
environmental protection equipment contracts of the Group was
previously recognised using the percentage of completion method.
Under HKFRS 15, early adopted by the Group, such contracts do not
meet the conditions of recognising the revenue over time. Revenue
of such projects is now recognised at a point in time when control
of the products is transferred to the customers. Hence, the revenue
of 2016 is retrospectively restated.

(note 1) Referring to note 2 to financial statements,

(W) RIS AN E2FTR - R EERIRREA Al
RBEDEEIADLHARR - REAEEDRT
RN E B RE RIS 155 - REARLTHA
BERS RIRE RS B 11 © X HIE B BV KERBS IO
ROEHEERTECBER - Bt - —T—AFH
W3S BB W EF] o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BB A wm M AT

Revenue generated from environmental protection equipment
contracts of the Group amounted to over 97% of its total
revenue. Depending on the specifications and requirements
of its customers, the Group may provide an integrated
set of atmospheric pollution control devices comprising
precipitators, desulfurisation system and/or denitrification
system, or only provide one type of the said atmospheric
pollution control devices on a stand-alone basis towards new
installation projects or upgrading or modification projects. A
majority of the Group’s environmental protection equipment
contracts of the Group are related to the manufacture,
installation and sales of electrostatic precipitators.

The following table sets forth a further revenue breakdown
of environmental protection equipment contracts of the
Group by types of atmospheric pollution control solutions
for the respective years indicated:

AEBONRRRESFAELN W EE B REE
TRMALE - BFEFHRBRER - AEETA]
BARERBIARRBERBRE—BEAR
ERMAKRE - BIERER  BERSKR X
BAEEG - KR BEEREE L —BARSRIA
KE -AKBAFIREIBEFAERE <
KENHEHERESRBH -

TREIIFAREFRRARSRIAMRT RN
BEE D NAKBERRRES RHE — PR
il

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEEFE

2017 2016
—B—+tF —E-RF
RMB’000 % | RMB’000 %
ARETT ARETTT
Environmental protection RRREER
equipment contracts
Ash removal and transfers B KR I B
- Electrostatic precipitator — B ERREERS 542,574 70 | 663,857 70
— Electrostatic-bag composite —EREERESS
precipitator 88,836 1 108,717 11
- Bag filter precipitator — R PREERE 44,376 54,307 6
— Others (e.g. Pneumatic ash —Hh (IR AR
conveying system) 5D 20,187 3 24,705 2
S0z and NOx emission B ek Rkaalt
reduction (desulfurisation and L2l I QTSR
denitrification devices) XE) 82,784 10 [ 101,311 11
778,757 100 952,897 100

The Group's revenue for the Year was mainly generated
from ash transfers environmental protection equipment
contracts of the Group relating to electrostatic precipitator
and electrostatic-bag composite precipitator. As a result,
the revenue derived from projects relating to electrostatic
precipitator and electrostatic-bag composite precipitator
were decreased from approximately RMB663.9 million and
approximately RMB108.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2016 to approximately RMB542.6 million and
approximately RMB88.8 million for the Year.
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With the experience in delivery of new installation
projects, the Group also provided large scale upgrading and
modification projects for power plants and other industries.

Cost of sales

The Group’s costs incurred in environmental protection
equipment contracts of the Group principally comprise
material costs, staff costs, depreciation and overhead
costs. The Group’s major raw materials used in the
manufacturing process of ash removal and transfer devices
and desulfurisation and denitrification devices are steel,
electrical instruments, filter bags and others.

The cost of sales of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB593.1 million for the Year, representing a decrease of
18.0% from approximately RMB722.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2016.

Gross profit and gross margin
The following table sets forth the breakdown of gross profit

and gross margin of the Group (stated as a percentage of
revenue) for the respective years indicated:
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Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2017 2016

—E—+F —T—EF

Gross profit (RMB’000) EFMARETFT) 199,102 234,033
Gross margin (%) EFE(%) 25.1% 24.5%
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The Group's gross profit of the Year amounted to
approximately RMB199.1 million, representing a decrease
of approximately RMB34.9 million or 14.9% as compared
with approximately RMB234.0 million of the previous year.
The gross margin of the Group increased to 25.1% for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The increase was driven by
(i) further enhancement of the bargaining power of the Group
over its projects due to the significant increase in market
recognition and competitiveness after the listing of the
Group on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and (ii) the
enhancement of the standard of environmental protection
requirements in the PRC and accordingly governmental
support on the environmental protection facilities which
improved the profitability of the Group.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group during the Year surged
to approximately RMB14.1 million, representing a dramatic
increase of 6.2% from that of the previous year. Such surge
was mainly attributable to the following:

(i) The bank interest income in 2017 increased
by approximately RMB1.8 million from 2016 to
approximately RMB4.5 million.

(i) There is no foreign exchange gain for the year ended
31 December 2017.

(iii) Compared with 2016, the income from Government
grants in 2017 increased by approximately RMB2.9
million, mainly due to the fact that the Company
obtained the Government’s assistance in upgrading
backbone enterprise reward of approximately RMB8.7
million.
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Selling and distribution expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses of the Year
amounted to approximately RMB24.7 million, representing
an increase of approximately RMB1.7 million as compared
with approximately RMB23.0 million of the previous year.

(i)

(i)

The business hospitality expenses in 2017 increased
by approximately RMB1.5 million, or approximately
27.3%, to RMB7.0 million as compared with
approximately RMB5.5 million of the previous year.

The bid services expenses in 2017 was approximately
RMB2.7 million. Compared with 2016, the amount for
the Year decreased by approximately RMB1.1 million,
or 28.9%, from approximately RMB3.8 million.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group for the Year
amounted to approximately RMB68.0 million, representing
a decrease of 15.5% as compared with approximately
RMB80.5 million of the previous year, mainly due to:

(i)

(i)

the impairment losses in 2017 decreased by
approximately RMB3.5 million from 2016 to
approximately RMB23.8 million, mainly due to the
impairment of trade receivables; and

the research and development expenses in 2017
decreased by approximately RMB17.5 million from
2016 to approximately RMB4.1 million, mainly due to
the increase in the number of technicians employed
by the Group and the related efforts in research and
development during the Year.
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Finance cost

The finance cost of the Year amounted to approximately
RMB5.8 million, representing a decrease of 13.1% as
compared with approximately RMB6.7 million of the previous
year.

Income tax expense

The Group's income tax expense of the Year amounted to
approximately RMB31.3 million, representing an increase
of 1.6% as compared with approximately RMB30.8 million
of the previous year.

Trade and bills receivables

As at 31 December 2017, the trade and bills receivables of
the Group were approximately RMB619.3 million, decreased
by approximately RMB40.7 million as compared to that of
the previous year, mainly due to (i) the acceleration in the
launch of projects and settlement, as well as (ii) growth of
revenue from continuing operations.

Inventories

As at 31 December 2017, the Group experienced a
decrease of inventories by approximately RMB39.4 million
to approximately RMB470.9 million when compared to the
previous year. The inventories mainly consisted of steels,
filter bags, electrical instruments and other components.

Liquidity and capital resources
Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2017, the cash and cash equivalents of
the Group decreased by approximately RMB113.1 million
to approximately RMB47.7 million when compared to the
previous year, which was mainly due to:

(i) the net cash outflow of approximately RMB9.0 million
used in financing activities, which mainly consists of
the cash outflow of approximately RMB9.0 million on
proceeds from bank borrowings and repayments of
bank borrowings;
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(ii) the net cash outflow of approximately RMB81.3
million used in investing activities of the Group in
the year, which mainly consists of the cash outflow
of approximately RMB53.4 million on purchase of
plants and equipment to cater for the expansion of
the Group's business scale and the growing sales;
and

(iii) the net cash outflow of approximately RMB22.1
million used in the operation of the Group in the Year.

Indebtedness

As of 31 December 2017, the Group incurred outstanding
bank loans of approximately RMB110.0 million.

Net current assets

As at 31 December 2017, the net current assets of the
Group (the difference between total current assets and
current liabilities) increased by approximately 5.1% from
approximately RMB503.1 million of the same period in 2016
to approximately RMB528.6 million for the Year.

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditures of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB53.4 million, which were used mainly for the purchase
of property, plant and equipment in the Year.

Exchange risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from sales by operating units in currencies
other than the functional currencies adopted by the units.
Approximately 2.5% (2016: 2.6%) of its sales for the Year
were denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the operating units making the sale. At present,
the Group does not intend to seek to hedge its exposure
to foreign exchange fluctuations. However, the Group's
management will constantly monitor the economic situation
and the foreign exchange risk profile of the Group, and will
consider appropriate hedging measures in the future should
the need arise.
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Major acquisitions and disposals

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposals
during the Year.

Significant investments

The Group did not have any significant investments during
the Year.

Contingent liabilities

The Group is neither currently involved in any material legal
proceedings nor aware of any pending or potential material
legal proceedings involving itself. If the Group were involved
in such material legal proceedings, the Group would record
any loss or contingent events when, based on information
then available, it is likely that a loss has been incurred and
the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities or guarantees.

PROSPECTS

The Group will actively seek appropriate acquisition projects
to expand its capabilities of research and development,
manufacturing and sales, as well as to access new markets
to complement existing business of the Group.

The Group believes that its established customer base in the
PRC and its exposure to overseas markets can help it lay a
solid foundation for future expansion in both domestic and
overseas markets of the Group and place it in an ideal position
to capture the growth in any of those markets. Looking
forward, the Group will continue to enhance its research
and development capabilities, develop new technologies
and expand our product portfolio (such as ash conveyers),
strengthen sales and capture the growing opportunities in
the atmospheric pollution control solution industry in the
PRC, enhance the Group’s national and international brand
recognition, as well as develop potential overseas markets
to expand its international market share.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently consists of nine members, comprising
three executive Directors, three non-executive Directors
and three independent non-executive Directors. The powers
and duties of the Board include convening Shareholders’
meetings and reporting the Board's work at Shareholders’
meetings, implementing resolutions passed at Shareholders’
meetings, determining the Group's business plans and
investment plans, formulating the Group's annual budget and
final accounts, formulating proposals for profit distributions
and for the increase or reduction of share capital as well as
exercising other powers, functions and duties as conferred
by the articles of association of the Company ("Articles
of Association”). Each of the Directors has entered into a
service contract/letter of appointment with the Group.

Executive Directors

Mr. BIAN Yu (%) (“Mr. Bian”), aged 34, is the chairman of
the Board and an executive Director appointed on 28 December
2009. Mr. Bian was also appointed as general manager of the
Company on 15 May 2017. Mr. Bian has approximately 13
years of experience in the business of provision of atmospheric
pollution control solutions. Mr. Bian has also been the executive
director of various subsidiaries of the Company including Zhuji
City Tianjie Electronic and Technology Co., Ltd.* (FEEHXZ
BT RHEBER AR, Zhuji City Tianjie Installation Engineering
Co., Ltd.* (EEMRREL R ITEFR A ) (“Tianjie Installation
Engineering”) and Turpan Environmental Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (HBFRZRFEEHLBR AR since June 2009, March
2008 and July 2013 respectively.
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Mr. Bian has worked as a director of Tengy Group Limited* (<
BREBBRAT]) (“TGL") since August 2003. He is responsible
for the overall strategies, planning and business development
of TGL. Particularly, he focuses on the management of the
business of the provision of atmospheric pollution control
solutions carried on by TGL prior to the establishment of
the Company in December 2009. From September 2005 to
December 2007, he served in various positions such as general
commander and general manager in different departments in
the subsidiaries of TGL such as Zhejiang Tianjie Special Steel
Co., Ltd.* (T K RFFHHAR A7) (“Tianjie Special Steel”),
Zhejiang Tianjie New Materials Co., Ltd.* ($ LK ZF ML B R
‘A 7)) (“Tianjie New Materials”) and Zhejiang Tianjie Magnetic
Materials Co., Ltd*. (HTRZELIEM B HBRAE) which
were principally engaged in manufacturing, processing and
marketing of steel blade and he was mainly responsible for
the overall operation and production management.

He worked as a director in various companies such as Zhejiang
Tianjie General Machinery Co., Ltd.* (i T K238 BB R A
7)) (“Tianjie General Machinery") (being principally engaged
in manufacturing and marketing of machinery and parts) since
April 2008, Shanghai Tianjie Metal Material Co., Ltd* (/&
KEZSBHEAR AT (being principally engaged in sale of
metal materials, construction materials and chemical raw
materials) from July 2010 to October 2012, Shanghai Guotuo
Mining Investments Limited* (E/SRABEERERRAF)
(being principally engaged in management and exploration
of mines and development of mining technology) from July
2010 to May 2015, Zhuji Tengy Small Loan Co. Ltd* (&
K2/ FEEFARR AT (being principally engaged in providing
small loan and financial consultancy service in Zhuiji City) since
June 2011, and as chairman of the board of Zhuji City Tianyu
Industry Investment Ltd* (FEEHMAFEZEILEGE 2 7)) (being
principally engaged in real estate development and property
investment) since November 2010 and of Zhuji City Runtian
Property Management Ltd.* (BZEMEXMEETIEERAT)
(being principally engaged in property management) since
September 2011. He was mainly responsible for advising on
operational and business strategy of the foregoing entities.
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Mr. Bian is currently the standing council member (F #5312 %)
of the second Council of Zhejiang Association of Equipment
Industries for Environmental Protection (#T/T & RREHEHTT
#WpeE _JEEEE). He has also been the deputy officer
member* (IZE1EZ 8) of the sixth Electrostatic Precipitator
Committee of The Environmental Protection Industry* (4
BEIRRREEX D EEREZESE S EEREZEE) since
February 2014.

Mr. Bian graduated with a bachelor’s degree in mechanical
engineering and automation from Zhejiang University (#17T K
2) in June 2005. He obtained his master of science degree
in corporate and international finance from University of
Durham in the United Kingdom in January 2008. He is the
son of Mr. Bian Jianguang, the brother of Ms. Bian Shu, and
the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan.

Mr. Bian is a member of the family comprising Mr. Bian
Jianguang, Ms. Bian Shu and himself (“Bian Family"”)
and the Bian Family is a controlling Shareholder (within the
meaning of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) of the Company
("Controlling Shareholders”, each being a “Controlling
Shareholder”).
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Mr. BIAN Weican (32 1Z#8), aged 57, is an executive Director
and the deputy general manager of the Company appointed
on 28 December 2009 and 5 February 2018 respectively.
Mr. Bian Weican has approximately 25 years of experience
in the business of provision of atmospheric pollution control
solutions.

Mr. Bian Weican worked as a worker of Zhuji County Mechanical
Model Plant* (FEESZEMIERER) (being principally engaged
in the processing and production of machinery mould) from
February 1982 to January 1985 in which he was responsible
for manufacturing machinery mould. He worked as the supply
procurement manager of Zhuji County Cement Machinery
Plant* (FEZHICEHEME) (being principally engaged in the
production and sale of cement machinery equipment) from
February 1985 to June 1989 in which he was responsible for
the procuring of raw materials. From July 1989 to May 1995, he
worked as the supply procurement manager of Zhejiang Zhuiji
City Industrial Environmental Protection Equipment Factory*
(I T FEEETH T 3 IRIRRAB 42 which was principally engaged
in the production and marketing of industrial environmental
protection equipment and he was responsible for the procuring
of raw materials. He worked as the director of the material
procuring department of TGL from June 1995 to August 2013
in which he was responsible for the materials procurement
planning and management of suppliers.

Mr. Bian Weican graduated from Zhuji County Tongshan

Community High School (FEEZERILARALFLER) in
Zhejiang Province in July 1976.
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Ms. BIAN Shu (%), aged 36, is an executive Director
and the deputy manager of the administration department
of the Company. She was appointed as a Director on 1
June 2016, and has served as the deputy manager of the
administration department of the Company since September
2014. Previously, Ms. Bian Shu worked as the manager of
the human resources department of TGL from February
2006 to January 2010 and was responsible for the human
resources management and administration work of TGL.
She worked as the chief financial officer of TGL between
February 2010 to December 2011 and was responsible for
accounting matters and financial planning and management.
Ms. Bian Shu served as the vice president of TGL from
December 2011 to August 2014, and was responsible for
day-to-day operations and management and to deputise the
president when necessary. Furthermore, she served as the
chairman of the supervisory committee of the Company
(“Supervisory Committee”, each member thereof being
“Supervisor”) from 28 December 2009 to 31 May 2016
and as the employee representative Supervisor from 10
May 2014 to 31 May 2016, and was primarily responsible for
supervising and overseeing the performance of the Directors
and other senior management members of the Company.

Ms. Bian Shu holds a bachelor’s degree of philosophy from
Zhejiang University in June 2003. She holds a master degree
of international business from the University of Sydney in
October 2006. She is the spouse of Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan, the
sister of Mr. Bian Yu and the daughter of Mr. Bian Jianguang.

Ms. Bian Shu is a member of the Bian Family and the Bian
Family is a Controlling Shareholder.
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. BIAN Jianguang (#33), aged 63, is the vice chairman
of the Board and a non-executive Director appointed on 28
December 2009. Mr. Bian Jianguang has approximately
27 years of experience in the business of the provision of
atmospheric pollution control solutions.

Mr. Bian Jianguang worked as the factory director of Zhuiji
County Mechanical Model Plant* (&2 %M AE AL R) (being
principally engaged in the processing and production of
machinery mould) from February 1982 to January 1985 in
which he was responsible for the overall management and
business operation. From February 1985 to June 1989,
he worked as the factory director of Zhuji County Cement
Machinery Plant* (&2 &K E#M M) which was principally
engaged in the production and sale of cement machinery
equipment, and he was responsible for overall management
and business operation. He worked as the factory director
of Zhejiang Zhuji City Industrial Environmental Protection
Equipment Factory* (i1 4 #& B LERIR LB L) (being
principally engaged in the production and marketing of
industrial environmental protection equipment) from July
1989 to May 1995 in which he was responsible for the overall
management and business operation. From June 1995 to
August 2003, he served as the chairman of the board of
directors and the executive director of TGL and he later
resigned as chairman of the board of directors and have been
serving as vice chairman of the board of directors of TGL
since August 2003 responsible for the overall management
and business operation of TGL. He worked as the director of
Tianjie General Machinery (being principally engaged in the
manufacturing and marketing of machinery and parts) from
November 1999 to April 2008 in which he was responsible
for its overall management and business operation.
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Mr. Bian Jianguang has been working as the general
manager of Tianjie New Materials (principally engaged in
manufacturing, processing and marketing of steel blade)
since August 1997, Tianjie General Machinery (being
principally engaged in manufacturing and marketing of
machinery and parts) from November 1999 to January 2005,
as an executive director for various companies such as
Tianjie Special Steel (principally engaged in manufacturing,
processing and marketing of steel blade) since March 2006,
Zhuiji City Tianjie Heavy Machines Limited* (FEZM K25 T
W ABR A 7)) (being principally engaged in research, design
and development of heavy machines) since October 2008,
Akesu Xintian Technology Limited* (P52 gxFT KR AR A
7)) (being principally engaged in raw iron and sponge iron
related business) since October 2011, and he is mainly
responsible for day-to-day operation and management, and
overall business management in these companies.

Mr. Bian Jiangguang once served as the chairman and legal
representative of Chongqing Tianjie Industry Co Ltd* (&
BEREZEEAMR AR, a company incorporated in the PRC
(“Chonggqing Tianjie"”), with a business scope covering sales
of construction and decoration materials. Since Chongaging
Tianjie no longer carried on business and did not conduct
annual inspection, its business licence was revoked on 30
March 2005. According to Mr. Bian Jiangguang, Chongging
Tianjie was solvent and dormant at the time of it being
revoked and such revocation did not result in any liability
or obligation imposed against him.

Mr. Bian Jianguang is the father of Mr. Bian and Ms. Bian
Shu, and the father-in-law of Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan. Mr. Bian
Jianguang is a member of the Bian Family and the Bian
Family is a Controlling Shareholder.

Mr. ZHANG Yuanyuan (ER3&), aged 36, is a non-executive
Director appointed on 28 December 2009. Mr. Zhang
Yuanyuan has approximately 7 years of experience in the
business of the provision of atmospheric pollution control
solutions.
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From May 2007 to January 2009, Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan
worked as the general manager of Jiangxi Chenyu Aluminium
Industry Ltd.* (IFARFIEBMR AR (“Chenyu Lvye”)
which was principally engaged in the non-ferrous metals
processing, production, marketing and trading of machineries
and components, metal products and components, metal
doors and windows and electrical products, and he was
responsible for its overall operation and management. He
has been working as the director of Zhejiang Tianjie New
Energy Co., Ltd. (being principally engaged in wind power
generation and solar power generation) since May 2008 and
was responsible for giving advice on operation strategy,
attending board meeting and evaluation of business operation
and development strategy. He has been working as the
president of TGL since January 2009 and is responsible for
the overall management and business operation of TGL. He
is currently the vice chairman of Shanghai Aluminum Trade

Association (/EIREITERS).

Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan holds a bachelor’s degree of applied
physics from Tongji University (7% A£2) in July 2003. He
holds a master degree of engineering management from
the University of Technology, Sydney GEERHTAE) in
Australia in July 2007. He is the spouse of Ms. Bian Shu,
the brother- in-law of Mr. Bian and the son-in-law of Mr. Bian
Jianguang. Mr. Bian, Ms. Bian Shu and Mr. Bian Jianguang
are members of the Bian Family and the Bian Family is a
Controlling Shareholder.
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Mr. CHEN Jiancheng, aged 55, commenced his career at
Zhuji County Mechanical Modelling Factory* (282 HE M
BAYRER) in January 1985. From 1986 to 1988, he worked
as a technical supervisor* (FiEl&K) of Zhuji Cement
Machinery Factory* (7 Z7KJE#ME), primarily responsible
for the compilation of general equipment designs as well
as manufacturing artworks. From 1990 to 1995, he served
as a technical supervisor* (FfffEl&) of Zhejiang Zhuji
Environmental Industrial Equipment Factory* (/T & EE
™ LERIREZMELER). In 1995, Mr. Chen joined TGL as an
assistant to general manager, and then served as a deputy
director of the Office of Technological Transformation (Ff7
s g = BI=E1T) of TGL overseeing projects in relation to
strip steel, medium sheets and other products from 2000 to
2009. From 2009 onwards, Mr. Chen has become the chief
technology officer ($1iT48 E5) of TGL primarily responsible for
technological research and development as well as product
quality control.

Mr. CHEN Jiancheng graduated from Zhuji Paitou Middle
School* (FEEB M EEFE) in July 1979.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. YU Zhao Fei (R&|%) (“Mr. YU”), aged 37, is an
Independent Non-executive Director appointed on 30 March
2018. Mr. Yu has more than seven years of work experience
in the legal field. He is extremely experienced in economic
law.

Mr. YU graduated with 2 bachelor’'s degrees in law and
economics respectively in July 2004 from the Faculty of
Law of Zhongnan University of Economics and Law (/7 g Bf
LBEKRE). In July 2007, he graduated as a master of law
from Northwest University of Political Science and Law (78
b AR E). From September 2007 to July 2010, he studied
in Renmin Law School (F B A R AKE£Z[7) and gained the
doctor of law degree. From July 2010 to August 2012, he
engaged in the post-doctoral research at the Theoretical
Economics Postdoctoral Station of Renmin University of

China (FEIARKES).

Mr. YU joined Shen Jun Ru Law School of Hangzhou Normal
University (fiEM&E5REE$91FA2FT) in August 2012 as
a lecturer for economic law. From September 2007 to
July 2010, he engaged in the post-doctoral research at
the Theoretical Economics Post-doctoral Station of Renmin
University of China (FBIARKZ) and the Post-doctoral
Research Station of China Executive Leadership Academy
Pudong (7 B3 #20ER).
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Mr. FUNG Kui Kei Jonas (B8EE) (“Mr. FUNG”), aged
37, is an Independent Nonexecutive Director appointed on
30 March 2018. Mr. FUNG has more than 15 years of
work experience in the accounting field. He is extremely
experienced in advising on corporate finance matters
including pre-IPO, acquisitions and mergers, and corporate
governance and general compliance issues for listed
companies and private companies.

Mr. FUNG graduated with a bachelor’s degree in accounting
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University (B8 T A
&) in October 2003. Mr. FUNG is one of the founders of
JMD & PME CPA Limited and OCTOSEC CPA LIMITED,
providers of professional corporate advisory to enterprises
in Hong Kong, and has been a partner of the same since
August 2014 and July 2016 respectively. From May 2011 to
March 2014, he worked as the assistant finance manager of
AZONA (HK) LIMITED principally engaged in fashion retail.
From December 2008 to May 2011, he was the auditor of
Shu Lun Pan Hong Kong CPA LIMITED and subsequently
the assistant manager of BDO Limited (due to a merger
between Shu Lun Pan Hong Kong CPA LIMITED), which is
the Hong Kong member firm of BDO International Limited.
From January 2006 to October 2008, he was the auditor
of BDO Limited. From October 2003 to December 2005,
he was an auditor in CWCC, a professional advisory firm
providing a full range of business services in Hong Kong
and major cities in mainland China.

Mr. FUNG has been a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants (“ACCA") since 2007. He
has also been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") since 2011.

Mr. ZHANG Bing (3&/&), aged 36, is an independent
nonexecutive Director appointed on 15 September 2014.
Mr. Zhang Bing has approximately 8 years of experience in
the field of environmental planning.
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Mr. Zhang Bing worked as a lecturer in the School of
Environment, Nanjing University (R AXEZIREET) in
December 2008 in which he was responsible for teaching
and conducting research. He was promoted to an associate
professor and assumed the said role from December 2010
to December 2013 in which he was responsible for teaching,
conducting research and personnel training, and he later
became a professor and has been working since December
2013 in which he is responsible for teaching, conducting
research and supervising doctoral students. Mr. Zhang
Bing has been the director of the Center for Environmental
Management and Policy of Jiangsu Environmental Protection.

Mr. Zhang Bing was a committee member and the deputy
secretary of the second committee of the Society for
Environmental Economics of the Chinese Society for
Environmental Sciences (FRIRERZSEBGRIBLES S
2) from October 2008 to September 2012 and has been
the director of Chinese Society of Optimisation, Overall
Planning and Economical Mathematics, Energy Economics
and Management* (F BB AT B A MK BHB AR GER
LT IBIFE D ®) since November 2012.

Mr. Zhang Bing obtained the Scientific and Technological
Progress Award (Second Class)* (BRI iTiE 25 — % 8%) from
the Ministry of Education of the People’'s Republic of China
(FPEE AR FFIEZE &) in January 2010, the Eighth Young
Scientist Award of the Chinese Society for Environmental
Sciences* (£ /\[EFBIRERZE G FF R ) in December
2012 from the Society of Environmental Science of the PRC
(PEIRERIZEE) and the Environmental Protection and
Scientific Award (First Class)* (RIZ{RFERI ST 58—
%) from the Ministry of Environmental Protection of the
PRC (2 AR HEFEIIRIZIRERD) in December 2012.

Mr. Zhang Bing obtained a bachelor’s degree in environmental
planning from Nanjing University (RAZ) in June
2003 and a doctorate degree in environmental planning
and management from Nanjing University (FBRAZ) in
December 2008.
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SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members, with
two representatives of Shareholders and one representative
of employees. The employee representative Supervisor is
elected democratically by the employees representative
congress, while Shareholder representative Supervisors
are elected by the Shareholders. The term of office of
each Supervisor is three years, which is renewable upon
re- election and re-appointment. The powers and duties of
the Supervisory Committee include reviewing and verifying
financial reports, business reports and profit distribution
proposals prepared by the Board; and if in doubt, appointing
certified public accountants and practicing auditors to re-
examine the Company’'s financial information; monitoring
the financial activities of the Company, supervising the
performance of the Directors, the president and other senior
management members, and monitoring whether they had
acted in violation of the laws, regulations and Articles of
Association in the performance of their duties; requesting the
Directors, the president and senior management members
to rectify actions which are detrimental to the Company’s
interests; and exercising other rights given to them under
the Articles of Association. Each of the Supervisors has
entered into a service contract with the Group.
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SUPERVISORS

Mr. CHEN Xinhua (BR#7%), aged 55, is an employee
representative Supervisor and the head of the procurement
department of the Company. He joined the Group on 28
December 2009.

From January 1997 to May 2000, Mr. Chen Xinhua served
as the manager of the department of supplies of Zhejiang
Shengjie Environmental Engineering Co. Ltd.* (/L2
IRIRTIEAEBR AT and was responsible for the overall
departmental management. From June 2000 to October
2001, he served as the manager of technology transformation
projects of Tianjie Strip Steel Factory* (K245 ®). From
November 2001 to May 2003 and from January 2009 to
December 2009, he served as the procurement manager and
vice general manager of procurement centre, respectively,
of TGL, and was responsible for the procurement of raw
materials. From June 2003 to December 2008, he served
as the vice general manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel
Co. Ltd.* (I F BB A7), and was responsible for
assisting the general manger in its overall operation.

Mr. Chen was graduated from Shaoxing Vocational Secondary
College™ (ABHLTH B T FHZEE4R) in July 1990 majoring in
industrial enterprise management.

Mr. FU Jun (f813), aged 37, is a Shareholder representative
Supervisor. Prior to joining the Group on 18 October 2014,
Mr. Fu Jun joined the school of computer science and
information technology of Zhejiang Gongshang University
(T IEAZ) in December 2009 and was appointed as
a lecturer in April 2010. He was promoted to become an
assistant professor in November 2013 responsible for
teaching and conducting research. Since June 2014, he
has been working as a supervisor to master students in
which he is responsible for supervising master students.

Mr. Fu Jun obtained a bachelor’'s degree of bio-medical
engineering from Zhejiang University (JIZAZ) in June
2004 and a doctorate degree in bio-medical engineering from
Zhejiang University (#1/T X&) in December 2009. He also
completed two years of minor studies in Japanese language
in Zhejiang University (31T KX&) in June 2003.
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Mr. FANG Zhiguo (%JAEl), aged 40, is a Shareholder
representative Supervisor. Prior to joining the Group on
18 October 2014, he worked as a post-doctoral researcher
in environmental science and engineering at the Research
Centre for Eco-Environment Sciences of the Chinese
Academy of Sciences (BRI AERRIRITBIHFTH L) from
August 2005 to August 2008, in which he was responsible for
conducting research. He joined the school of environmental
science and engineering of Zhejiang Gongshang University
(T T ARE) in August 2008 and became an assistant
professor since October 2009, in which he is responsible
for teaching and conducting research.

Mr. Fang Zhiguo obtained a master degree of science
majoring in ecology from Zhejiang University (41T X&) in
June 2002 and a doctorate degree in science majoring in
ecology from the Graduate School of the Chinese Academy
of Science (FERZFHFEAPT) (later renamed as the
University of Chinese Academy of Sciences (FBIRIE2[E K
£2)) in July 2005. He was a visiting scholar at the University
of Oklahoma in the United States from June 2006 to May
2008.

Except as disclosed herein, to the best of the knowledge,
information and belief of the Directors having made all
reasonable enquiries, there are no other matters relating
to the appointment of Supervisors that need to be brought
to the attention of the Shareholders, nor is there any
information relating to the Supervisors that is required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules
including matters relating to directorship held by Supervisors
in any public companies the securities of which are listed
on any securities market in Hong Kong or overseas in the
last three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. QIU Jinxin (BB$2%), aged 55, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 15 May 2017. He
joined the Group on 17 September 2012. Mr. Qiu Jinxin has
approximately 22 years of experience in the business of
provision of atmospheric pollution control solutions.

Mr. Qiu Jinxin worked as a technician and deputy director of
Zhuiji City Fertiliser Factory* (A2 M{LAERR) (being principally
engaged in the production and marketing of fertiliser) from
August 1983 to July 1993 in which he was responsible
for quality control and equipment management. From July
1993 to January 2006, he worked in TGL with the last
position as chief engineer, and he was responsible for the
research and development of environmental protection
precipitator. He worked as the general manager in Zhejiang
Jieda Environmental Protection Engineering Company Ltd*
(T RERREB AR AR (being principally engaged in
the design, production and installation of environmental
protection projects) from February 2006 to December 2008
in which he was responsible for its overall management
and operation. From January 2009 to August 2012, he
worked as the vice general manager in Zhejiang Oriental
Environmental Protection Equipment Co., Ltd* (#TIE )
RIRZMEER AR which was principally engaged in the
technology development and marketing of environmental
protection equipments, and he was responsible for the
overall management and operation.

Mr. Qiu Jinxin has been the vice president of the fifth Council
of the Environmental Protection Industry Association of
Zhejiang Province* (NI ARREEHEFEABIEEE) since
April 2013 and the deputy secretariat* (BI#ZF) of third
Council of Environmental Protection Industry Association
of Zhuji City* (BAZETREREEEHTE=EIEET) since
December 2012. He has also been the standing council
member (ETFIEE) of the ninth Council of Environmental
Science Association of Zhejiang Province* (/T & RIERIE
BeENEIEEE) since 17 April 2015. In December 2005,
Mr. Qiu was accredited as senior engineer by Assessment
Committee for Qualification of Senior Position for Mechanical
Engineering Technician of Zhejiang Province* (#/T 4 #i% T
BEMAESABBETRERTEEZES). In July 2016, Mr.
Qiu Jinxin was included in the first batch of the expert list
of the expert database of Environmental Protection Industry
Association of Zhejiang Province* (T A RIREZHZ).
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Ms. WU Fengdi (RB\%), aged 35, has been the Chief
Financial Officer of the Company (“CFO") since 5 February
2018. She joined the Group and was appointed as the
financial manager of the Company on 28 December 2009.
Ms. Wu Fengdi has approximately 13 years of experience
in accounting in the atmospheric pollution control solutions
industry. Ms. Wu Fengdi worked as the chief accountant
of TGL from April 2003 to December 2009 and she was
responsible for the financials and internal auditing of TGL.

Ms. Wu Fengdi completed three years of studies in
accounting at Shaoxing University (43 8 X I Z7) in January
2008.

Mr. QIU Yonghui (B8 7k ¥#), aged 36, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 15 May 2017. He
joined the Group in December 2009 as the deputy manager
of the technology department. He was appointed as the
deputy general manager of the Company on 15 May 2017,
responsible for the operation of the technology department.

Mr. Qiu Yonghui is a first-class constructor (—#%#£35H1) and
registered environmental protection engineer (7 ER{R T2
Bf) in China. He focused on developing movable collecting
electrode plate, wet precipitators and high-efficiency
desulfurisation equipment. He had participated in designing
the movable collecting electrode plate for various projects,
including the 2x600MW unit of EMEBRAFEEBRAF
and 2x660MW unit of ElE# & &EE AR A F]. He had also
participated in designing the wet precipitators for various
projects, including the 3x50MW unit of AL X ZE and
12x50MW unit of /8.

Mr. Qiu Yonghui had acted as a technician and participated
in the research and development of a provincial new product
“circulating fluidised bed boiler auxiliary electrostatic
precipitator (fEER 7L IR )8 Bl = EBR EEES) for large generator
units (300MW-1000MW)". This product was accredited with
provincial product certification in 2010.
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Mr. ZHANG Rixing (R H1T), aged 49, is the deputy
general manager of the Company appointed on 5 February
2018. He joined the Group in May 2013 as the director
of marketing. He was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Company on 5 February 2018, responsible
for the operation of the sales department.

Mr. Zhang Rixing graduated from &2 £ £ iT224# majoring
in accounting in1986. Mr. Zhang Rixing served as the sales
supervisor of XK ZEBIRRFEME A A from July 1993 to April
2003 and was responsible for day-to-day sales management,
after-sale matters and liaison with buyers. He also served
as the general manager of Zhejiang Liyu Stainless Steel Co.
Ltd.* (T IZFHFEM B R AR from May 2003 to February
2008.

Ms. XIN Lingling (¥3¥%), aged 43, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 5 February 2018. She
joined the Group in March 2016 as the general manager of the
Hangzhou branch. She was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Company on 5 February 2018, responsible for
the operation of the research and development department.

Ms. Xin Lingling was graduated from Shanghai University
of Electric Power (/8% JJK2) majoring in power plant
thermal power engineering (EMZEES) 1 T2). She is a
senior engineer in China.

Ms. Xin Lingling served as the chief engineer of #T A
MEFMETZABR A from March 2004 to October 2007
and was responsible for project planning. She served as
the general manager of TR ARERILER A from
November 2007 to March 2011, served as the general
manager of WNTFIRIRIETEAR A7 from April 2011 to
March 2015 and also served as the technical consultant of
1b F IR R T2 B R 2 7] from April 2015 to February 2016.
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Mr. CHEN Jianguo (FREZ ), aged 57, is the deputy general
manager of the Company appointed on 3 May 2010. He
joined the Group on 28 December 2009 and was appointed
as the deputy general manager of the Company on 3 May
2010. Mr. Chen Jianguo has approximately 24 years of
experience in the business of provision of atmospheric
pollution control solutions.

Mr. Chen Jianguo worked as a technician in Zhuji City
Industrial Environmental Protection Equipment Factory*
(BEBWLERRZMEEM) (being principally engaged in
production and marketing of industrial environmental
protection equipment) from March 1991 to May 1995 in
which he was responsible for the research and development
of precipitators. From June 1995 to November 1998, Mr.
Chen Jianguo worked as the manager of engineering
department and assistant officer of technology department
of TGL and was responsible for supervising installation of
environmental protection equipments, after-sale matters and
liaison with buyers and organisation of technology related
matters respectively. From June 1995 to December 2009,
he worked as the head of the department of engineering and
installation of TGL and was responsible for the supervising
installation of environmental protection equipment’s, after-
sale matters and liaison with buyers. He has been working as
the general manager of Tianjie Installation Engineering since
December 2009 and is responsible for day-to-day operation
and management, and overall business management.

Mr. Chen Jianguo graduated from Zhuji County Tongshan
Community High School* (FEZH&RILARALFLER) in
Zhejiang Province in July 1977.
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JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. WONG Hon Kit (££%), and Ms. SHEN Qiong (it38)
are the Company's joint company secretaries.

Mr. WONG Hon Kit (E##E), aged 28, holds a Bachelor's
degree of Business Administration (Hons) in Accountancy
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr. Wong
Hong Kit is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He has over seven years
of extensive experience in finance, auditing and consulting
fields, gaining from an international accounting firm and
listed corporation. He served as the financial controller of
China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 08132), a company listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange from 2011. He worked as
a senior auditor in Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from 2011
to 2015.

Ms. SHEN Qiong (Ji38), aged 33, has been one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company since 1 November
2014 primarily responsible for the company secretarial
and legal matters of the Group. She joined the Group in
September 2014 as a legal officer. Ms. Shen Qiong has
approximately eight years of legal experience in relation to
business operations.

Ms. Shen Qiong worked as a legal officer in Zhejiang Group
Net Industrial Co., Ltd* (T FEZEAR2AF) (being
principally engaged in production and sales of environmental
protection equipment and machineries) from August 2006
to December 2008 in which she was responsible for legal
and compliance matters. From January 2009 to August
2014, she worked as a legal officer and the assistant to the
manager in TGL in which she was responsible for legal and
compliance matters.

Ms. Shen Qiong completed a long distance learning course
majoring in law from Southwest University of Political Science
& Law (FARBUEAZ) in July 2008. She also obtained a
qualification certificate of assistant engineer in municipal
engineering issued by Zhuji City Personnel Bureau* (752
AZE/B) in April 2010.
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximising shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its
corporate governance practices from time to time in order to
meet the rising expectations of stakeholders, comply with
increasingly stringent regulatory requirements and fulfill its
commitment to excellence in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company’'s corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG
Code") as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, the
Board is satisfied that the Company complied with the CG
Code provisions for the Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing an effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith in the
best interests of the Company and the Shareholders. The
Board established three Board committees, being the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee (each a “Board Committee” and
collectively the “Board Committees”), to oversee different
areas of the Company'’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises three executive Directors,
namely Mr. Bian, Mr. Bian Weican and Ms. Bian Shu; three
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Bian Jianguang, Mr.
Zhang Yuanyuan and Mr. Chen Jiancheng; three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yu Zhao Fei, Mr. Fung
Kui Kei and Mr. Zhang Bing.

Their biographical details and their family relationships (where
applicable) are set out in the section headed “Biographies
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” above
in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying
their roles, functions and independence is available on the
Company's website.
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Mr. Bian, an executive Director, the chairman of the Board
and the general manager of the Company, is the brother of
Ms. Bian Shu (an executive Director) and the son of Mr. Bian
Jianguang and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan
(both are also non-executive Directors). Save as disclosed
herein, there are no other financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships among the members
of the Board.

The Company is committed to the view that the Board
should include a balanced composition of executive and
non-executive Directors (including independent non-
executive Directors) so that there is a strong element of
independency on the Board, which facilitates the effective
exercise of independent judgements in the course of
decision-making. The Company is also committed to the
view that the independent non-executive Directors should
be of sufficient number, calibre and experience for their
views to carry weight, and that they should be free of any
business or other relationship which could have interfered or
potentially interfere, to any material extent, with the exercise
of independent judgment for the purpose of assumptions
of directorship in the Company.

Mr. Bian is the chairman of the Board, the executive Director
and the general manager of the Company, and is responsible
for overseeing the strategic planning, policy formulations
as well as corporate development of the Group as well
as undertaking the principal decision-making role in the
supervision and management of the Company's overall
operations. The Board meets regularly to consider, discuss
and review the major and appropriate issues that pertain to
the operations of the Company. As such, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been taken and the vesting of
the roles of Board management and the management of day-
to-day business of the Company in Mr. Bian will not impair
the balance of power and authority. It is believed that the
said balance is ensured by the effective management of the
Board, of which the structure provides the Group with strong
and consistent leadership and allows for a more effective
and efficient business planning, decision making as well as
execution of long term business strategies.
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The Board sets the Group's overall objectives and strategies,
monitors and evaluates its operating and financial performance
and reviews its corporate governance standards. It also
decides on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policies, dividend and accounting policies. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group's businesses to the executive
Directors and the senior management of which the members
should report back and obtain prior approval from the Board
before making decisions or entering into any commitments
for and on behalf of the Group. In compliance with the code
provision D3.1 of the CG Code, the functions and powers
that have been delegated are reviewed periodically to ensure
that they remain appropriate to the needs of the Group.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the Group,
and the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and senior management. The Board also
reviews the disclosures herein to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent access
to the Group's senior management to fulfill their duties.
Independent professional advice can be sought to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the Group's
expense upon their request. Since November 2015, all
Directors have been provided with monthly updates on the
Company'’s performance and financial position to enable the
Board as a whole and each Director to effectively discharge
their duties.

All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment of directorships or other positions
concurrently held in other companies or organisations.
These interests are updated on an annual basis and when
necessary.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care, skill
and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the Group.
Every newly appointed Director receives an induction to
ensure that he has a proper understanding of the business
and operations of the Group and that he is fully aware of
his duties and responsibilities as a director under applicable
rules and requirements.

In compliance with paragraph A.6.5 of the CG Code, during
the Year, the Company, together with its legal adviser,
organised training sessions to each of the Directors in
relation to continuing obligations of a Hong Kong listed
company and its directors. In addition, briefings and updates
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements are provided to
each of the Directors during Board meetings to ensure
compliance and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the independent non-executive Directors is to
provide independent and objective opinions to the Board,
giving adequate control and balances for the Group to protect
the overall interests of the shareholders and the Group.
They serve actively on the Board and Board Committees to
provide their independent and objective views.

In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, representing equal to one-third of the
Board. One of the independent non-executive Directors has
the appropriate professional qualifications in accounting or
related financial management expertise as required by Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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Each independent non-executive Director has submitted
an annual confirmation in writing on his/her independence
to the Company for the Year pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. Based on the contents of such confirmations,
the Company considers that all independent non-executive
Directors are independent and free of any relationship
that could materially interfere with the exercise of their
independent judgement.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Group has three non-executive Directors, being Mr. Bian
Jianguang, Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan and Mr. Chen Jiancheng.
At the annual general meeting convened for the year ended
31 December 2015 and held on 1 June 2016, Mr. Bian
Jianguang and Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan were re-appointed Mr.
Chen Jiancheng was newly appointed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 5 December 2017.

Details of the biographies of Mr. Bian Jianguang, Mr.
Zhang Yuanyuan and Mr. Chen Jiancheng are set out in the
section headed "Biographies of Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” above in this annual report. Directors
emoluments for Non-executive Directors are set out in note
8 to the Financial Statements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee. Each Board Committee has its
defined and written terms of reference approved by the
Board covering its duties, powers and functions. Their terms
of reference are available on the Company’s website.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties, including access to management
or professional advice if considered necessary.
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ALy A N/
KBRS
Audit Committee (i) BEXREES
The Audit Committee was established with terms of EZZESREBELMANEI 2N HEREE
reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing EIRSTRIECIERFTE M B HEE B S -
Rules as well as paragraph C.3 of the CG Code. The EREECH-EBUIIRITEEMERK -
Audit Committee consists of three independent non- DRAEBIERESLE - REIRILEERKMAL
executive Directors, namely Mr. Fung Kui Kei, Mr. oo BIEREAEEEBEEEER LG
Yu Zhao Fei and Mr. Zhang Bing. Mr. Fung Kui Kei, EBLR  RNZTE-NFZA=ZTHEZ
who has appropriate professional qualifications and TABREEGERE -
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee on 30 March
2018.
The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee ERZEENIEBAERHYESS MY
are to assist the Board in providing an independent HERFAE  NPEERREREERAE
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting BA R e 45 BN 62 B SNIE A BRAT B R 1R
process, internal control and risk management systems HBYER BEERTARE  UREBETE
and relationship with external auditor of the Group, EGZRNEMBERER  EHBESE
oversee the audit process and perform other duties MAEENFHRFERE o
and responsibilities as assigned by the Board. These
include reviewing the Group's interim and annual
reports.
Pursuant to the meeting of the Audit Committee on BEEZZEEN - N\F=ZA=-+=
23 March 2018, the Audit Committee has reviewed ARTHEE  BERZESCEHNAEHE
the consolidated financial statements of the Group REEMEEVHHRE([HBEHRER]D) (21
for the Year (“Financial Statements”), including the AEBRMNETTRAURER) - INEZE
accounting principles and practices adopted by the BFTREAHRE (EPREENEZARES
Group, the report prepared by the external auditor MNEZFAEER) A RINEZEEN T E K
covering major findings in the course of the audit, FE -RAFE  BERZESBRITMAE
and the selection and appointment of the external # - [BRZEgXESE T ELRESH
auditor. During the Year, two meetings of the Audit NN
Committee were held. The respective attendance
records of individual committee members are set out
below:
Attendance/Number
of meetings
Name of member RE BB HE SR RE
Mr. Zhang Bing RIRE A 2/2
Mr. Jiang Yan (Note 1) E=EEMFT) 2/2
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia (Note 1) BEM 2+ (HfaET) 2/2
Note 1:  Mr. Jiang Yan and Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia resigned as iz ZRAEREEMLIRN-_FT-NE=A=
the independent non-executive directors of the Company THRHEBERARBEUENTES - UR=F
on 30 March 2018 and they were replaced by Mr. Yu Zhao —N\FZAZ+ B RERRLEREE
Fei and Mr. Fung Kui Kei respectively on 30 March 2018. HeEAESRELIEZZESKE -
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(i) Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established with
terms of reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of
the Listing Rules as well as paragraph B.1 of the
CG Code. The Remuneration Committee comprises
three Directors, namely Mr. Yu Zhao Fei (independent
non-executive Director), Mr. Zhang Bing (independent
non-executive Director) and Mr. Chen Jiancheng (non-
executive Director). Mr. Yu Zhao Fei is the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are to review and make recommendations
to the Board on the overall remuneration structure
and policy for all Directors and senior management
as well as the specific remuneration packages for the
executive Directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process
for developing such remuneration policy. No Director
takes part in any discussion on his own remuneration.
The Company’s objective for its remuneration policy
is to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to the members of the Board, market
rates and factors such as each Director's workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group's performance are taken into account.

Pursuant to the meeting of the Remuneration
Committee on 23 March 2018, the Remuneration
Committee reviewed the remuneration policy and
structure relating to, as well as the respective service
contracts/letters of appointment of, the Directors and
senior management of the Company.

(ii)
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During the Year, one meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. The respective attendance
records of individual committee members are set out
below:

i ’ //\El uiﬁc © 1
AEEEKEEBMNHFLEHINNT

Attendance/Number
of meetings
Name of member RE BB HE ERRE
Mr. Jiang Yan (Note 1) E2EE(MFT) 1/1
Mr. Zhang Bing wREE 1/1
Ms. Zhu Hong (Note 2) KRELzz 4 (Hfat2) 1/1
Note 1:  Mr. Jiang Yan resigned as the independent non-executive W1 . EREERZT-N\F=A=+HETAR
director of the Company on 30 March 2018 and he was RIEMNIERITES  YWR-ZT—N\F=ZA=
replaced by Mr. Yu Zhao Fei on 30 March 2018. THERIREEEEELTTFMEE S
Note 2:  Ms. Zhu Hong resigned as the non-executive director of Bit2 : KREALITNZZE—+E+-ARBEELRR
the Company on 5 December 2017 and she was replaced AIIEMITESE TR _FT—+F+=-AFA
by Mr. Chen Jiancheng on 5 December 2017. ARERCERBTALEHFMNEEGKE -
The remuneration of members of the senior BEAFEAEESMNEIEER S FHEHE
management of the Group for the Year are set out in R BRI LS -
note 8 to the Financial Statements.
Nomination Committee (iii) REEES

The Nomination Committee was established with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5
of the CG Code and comprises three Directors, namely
Mr. Zhang Bing (independent non-executive Director),
Mr. Fung Kui Kei (independent non-executive Director)
and Ms. Bian Shu (executive Director). Mr. Zhang Bing
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity, at least
annually to ensure that it has a balance of expertise,
skills and experience appropriate to the requirements
of the business of the Group. It is also responsible
for considering and recommending to the Board any
suitably qualified person to become a member of the
Board, monitoring the succession planning of Directors
and assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors. The Nomination Committee
also gives consideration to the board diversity policy
adopted by the Board in March 2015 (“Board Diversity
Policy”) when identifying suitably qualified candidates
to become the members of the Board, and the Board
reviews the Board Diversity Policy, so as to develop and
review measurable objectives for the implementation
of the same and to monitor the progress on achieving
these objectives.

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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Pursuant to the meeting of the Nomination Committee
on 23 March 2018, the Nomination Committee reviewed
the structure, size and composition of the Board and
assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors. During the Year, one meeting of
the Nomination Committee was held. The respective
attendance records of individual committee members
are set out below:

REREZEEN T N\F=A-_+=HF
THEE  REZESCRIEFENRE
ANBRAR  YEFZBYIFRTEFHEL
- RAFE  REREQBT-Rg=x - @
BIZEEKEEBMHMFELEHIMT

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of member REAHE HEEERE
Mr. Zhang Bing RIRTAE 1M
Ms. Bian Shu Bkt 1/1
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia (Note 1) EEM L (M) 1/1

Note 1:  Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia resigned as the independent non-
executive director of the Company on 30 March 2018 and
she was replaced by Mr. Fung Kui Kei on 30 March 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set
out in paragraph D.3.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed the Company's corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, and the
Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, the extent of compliance of the
Company with the “Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers” under Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (“Model Code”) and the CG Code as well as
the relevant disclosures herein.
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BOARD PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board is required
to hold at least four Board meetings each year, to be
convened and hosted by the chairman of the Board. A notice
of at least fourteen days shall be dispatched for a regular
Board meeting. The notice shall state the time and venue
coupled with the means by which the Board meeting will be
convened at least three days before the relevant meeting.

The quorum for a Board meeting is the presence of at least
half of the total number of the Directors. A Director may
attend the Board meeting in person, or appoint another
Director in writing as his proxy to attend the Board meeting.
The secretary to the Board is responsible for preparing and
keeping the minutes of Board meetings and ensuring that
such minutes are available for inspection by any Director.

During the Year, seven Board meetings were held and the
respective attendance records of individual Board members
are set out below:

ESEREER

REABERAN  EFEFFARTRIAKX
HEFEIRARAREIRNESTEER - EFT
EHEFARLELTHXAMN - ZBHARE

gEl EE&%TTH'JE—/J\ 9&5”@%%&%%%22;%

RefE o HE R TTR e

St

SERNEEABELRESREBN—F -
EXTRGLFEZRS S  IIUBERAZRE
SEBEERAXZRREFESSEH - €59
WERBRANETESSORLE - URRZ
FeRmmak A (I ESER -

RAFE BEFGRITLIER
REEBRHFRSEHINMT

BB EEE

Attendance/Number

of meetings

Name of Director EEREB HE SR RE
Mr. Bian Yu BFRE 7/7
Mr. Bian Weican BEBREAE 717
Ms. Bian Shu Bkt 7/7
Mr. Bian Jianguang BEAEA 7[7
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan EREREE 7/7
Ms. Zhu Honghote 7 AR Ll 7/7
Mr. Zhang Bing sRIASE A 7/7
Mr. Jiang Yanhote 2 E R g2 717
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celighete 2 BRI A 2 717

Note 1: Ms. Zhu Hong has resigned with effect from 5 December 2017,
replaced by Mr. Chen Jiancheng.

Note 2: Mr. Jiang Yan and Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia has resigned with effect

from 30 March 2018, replaced by Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Yu Zhao
Fei.
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GENERAL MEETINGS

During the Year, the Company convened one annual general
meeting and two extraordinary general meeting which were
held on 22 June 2017, 15 June 2017 and 5 December 2017,
respectively. The respective attendance records of individual
Board members are set out below:

BRERXE

RAEE  ARRNRIR-_T—tFRA=-+=
B ZZE—tFXATHEAR-ZT—tF+=
ARBEAR—RBEFBEFKE MM RERRA
g - AREFEKE BN EFEREHIIMT

Attendance/Number
of meetings
Name of Director E=EB HE ERRE
Mr. Bian Yu BFEE 3/3
Mr. Bian Weican BEELEE 3/3
Ms. Bian Shu BT 3/3
Mr. Bian Jianguang BEALA 3/3
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan EREREE 3/3
Ms. Zhu Honghote 7 AR Ll 3/3
Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia"t 2 R £ -2 3/3
Mr. Jiang Yannote 2 E R g2 3/3
Mr. Zhang Bing sRIASE A 3/3
Note 1: Ms. Zhu Hong has resigned with effect from 5 December 2017,  Mfat1 : KRALZTE-_ZT—+F T+ - AR HEEE - WHKRE
replaced by Mr. Chen Jiancheng. BT AR EBA -
Note 2: Mr. Jiang Yan and Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia has resigned with effect ~ #i#2 - ZE2EEREEMZLTE T N\F=ZA =T HEE

from 30 March 2018, replaced by Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Yu Zhao
Fei.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Directors shall be
subject to election at the Company's annual general meetings
with a term of office of three years and may be re- elected.
The Company has implemented a set of effective procedures
for the appointment of new Directors. The Nomination
Committee shall, in accordance with provisions of the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of Association,
take into account the practical situations of the Company,
consider the selection criteria, selection procedures and
terms of office of the Directors, and record and submit the
resolutions to the Board for approval. All newly nominated
Directors are subject to election and approval at general
meetings.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board adopted the Board Diversity Policy in March
2015. The Company recognises and embraces the benefits
of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Selection of candidates is based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to
gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. The ultimate decision is based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates is expected to
bring to the Board.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee consists of three members.
The employee representative Supervisor, namely Mr. Chen
Xinhua, was elected by employees, whilst the remaining two
Supervisors were elected by the Shareholders. Mr. Chen
Xinhua entered into a service contract with the Company
on 1 June 2016, and each of Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang
Zhiguo signed a letter of appointment on 1 June 2016.
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the term of office
of the Supervisors shall be three years. The functions and
duties of the Supervisory Committee include, but are not
limited to, reviewing and verifying financial reports and, if in
doubt, appointing certified public accountant and practicing
auditor to re-examine the Company’s financial information;
monitoring the business activities of the Company;
supervising the performance of the Directors, the chairman
of the Board and other senior management members, and
monitoring whether they had acted in violation of the laws,
regulations and Articles of Association in the performance
of their duties; requesting the Directors, the chairman of the
Board and senior management members to rectify actions
which damage the Company’s interests; and exercising
other rights given to them under the Articles of Association.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Group adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct
on securities transactions entered into by the Directors and
Supervisors, in order to govern such transactions. Having
made specific written enquiries, all Directors and Supervisors
confirmed their compliance with the provisions under the
Model Code throughout the Year.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wong Hon Kit and Ms. Shen Qiong are the joint company
secretaries of the Company.

Being the joint company secretaries, Mr. Wong and Ms. Shen
serve an important role in ensuring good information flow
within the Board and that the Board policies and procedures
are followed. Both of them are responsible for advising
the Board on corporate governance matters and facilitating
induction and professional development of Directors.

During the Year, the joint company secretaries of the
Company complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The
biographical details of each of the said joint company
secretaries are set out in the section headed “Biographies
of Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” above
in this annual report.
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

Financial reporting

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Financial Statements which give a true and fair view of the
Group's state of affairs, results and cash flows for the Year
and in accordance with the Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the HKICPA, and the disclosure
requirements under the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The Company selected appropriate
accounting policies and applied them consistently based
on prudent and reasonable judgments and estimates. The
Board considers that the Group has adequate resources to
continue in business for the foreseeable future and is not
aware of any material uncertainties relating to any events
or conditions that may affect the business of the Group or
cast doubts on its ability to continue as a going concern.

The responsibilities of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited, the
Company's external auditor, with respect to financial
reporting are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditors’ Report” below in this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the establishment and
development of the internal control and risk management
framework, as well as the regular review of the internal control
procedures and policies and risk management practices of
the Group. The Audit Committee is responsible for advising
on and overseeing the internal control and risk management
issues, and assuming an active role in communicating the
best practice in the aforesaid issues to the Directors and
senior management of the Group. The senior management
members are responsible for the execution of internal
control policies and procedures as well as risk assessment
practices implemented by the Group. Amid the Group's set-
up of its internal audit department, the CFO and the joint
company secretaries of the Group are currently carrying
out the internal audit function and assisting the Board and
senior management to review, maintain and advise on the
internal control and risk management framework and the
implementation of the relevant policies, procedures and
practices of the Group.
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The Group’s risk management practices are to manage the
risks that it internally and externally encounters. With the
assistance of the whistle blowing policies to be adhered to
by all staff, the Group's risks could be kept at a manageable
level.

During the Year, the Board or its representatives conducted
a regular walk-through examination on internal controls and
risk management throughout the Group, including analysing
the internal control and risk management system as a whole,
interviewing and discussing with managers on issues in which
their respective departments were involved, assessing on
the effectiveness of policies, procedures and practices, and
taking advices from the joint company secretaries and CFO.

The Company has plans for submission of an application for
listing of its Shares on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and, for
such purpose, an external consultant was engaged during
the Year to review the internal control and risk management
framework. During the said review, the overall internal
control and risk management framework were assessed,
with several recommendations made to the Board and senior
management.

The Board also carried out an annual review of the
enhanced internal control policies and procedures as well
as risk management practices of the Group in accordance
with paragraph C.2.1 of the CG Code, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk
management functions of the Group. During the Year, the
Board reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control policies and procedures as well as risk management
practices, and considered that they are adequate and
effective.

The Board, the Audit Committee, the Company's senior
management will continue to review the relevant policies,
procedures and practices in order to maintain a high level
of corporate governance over the operation of the Group.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’'S
REMUNERATION

Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited was appointed as the external
auditor of the Company on 5 December 2017. During 2018,
the fees period to Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited in respect
of its annual audit services provided to the Group was
approximately RMB1.0 million.

Ernst & Young resigned as the external auditor of the
Company on 26 September 2017. During 2017, the fees
period to Ernest & Yong in respect of its annual audit services
provided to the Group was approximately RMB2.38 million.

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the Year.

COMMUNICATION WITH
SHAREHOLDERS AND SHAREHOLDERS’
RIGHTS

The Company aims to, by virtue of its corporate governance
structure, enable all Shareholders an equal opportunity to
exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow them
to engage actively with the Company. Under the Articles
of Association, the shareholder communication policy and
other relevant internal procedures of the Company, the
Shareholders enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i) Participation in general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide an
opportunity for direct communication between the
Board and the Shareholders. The Company encourages
the participation of the shareholders through annual
general meetings and other general meetings where
the Shareholders meet and exchange views with the
Board, and to exercise their right to vote at meetings.
The Company shall arrange notices of meetings and
circulars containing details on proposed resolutions to
be sent to the shareholders no less than 45 days before
the meeting. At general meetings, separate resolutions
are proposed on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors.
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1

(ii)

(iii)

ALl A N =
FBEameE

Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages Shareholders to attend
Shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention of
the Company secretary at the registered office of the
Company in the PRC currently at TENGY Industrial
Park, Paitou Town, Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, The
PRC or the principal place of business in Hong Kong
at Unit T, 6th Floor, Union Industrial Building, 48 Wong
Chuk Hang Road, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong
Kong.

Convening extraordinary general meetings

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board
shall convene an extraordinary general meeting
or class meeting within two months where any
Shareholder holding, severally or jointly, 10% or more
of the Company’s issued shares carrying voting rights
requests in writing for the convening of an extraordinary
general meeting or class meeting. The Shareholders
holding, severally or jointly, 10% or more of voting
shares at such proposed meeting may request the
Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting
or class meeting by signing and submitting one or
several written requests with the same format and
contents and specifying the agenda of the meeting.
An extraordinary general meeting or class meeting
shall be convened by the Board as soon as practicable
upon receipt of the aforesaid written request. The
aforesaid shareholding shall be calculated on the basis
of the date on which the relevant Shareholders submit
the written request. If the Board fails to dispatch a
notice of convening such meeting within 30 days
upon receipt of the aforesaid written request, the
Shareholders individually or jointly holding 10% or
more of the shares of the Company may convene
such a meeting by themselves within four months of
the date of the receipt of such request by the Board.
The procedures for convening such meeting should
follow those for convening a general meeting or class
meeting of Shareholders by the Board to the greatest
extent practicable.

(ii)

(iii)
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All reasonable expenses incurred for the purpose
of convening and holding the aforesaid meeting by
Shareholders due to the failure of the Board to hold
such meeting in response to the aforesaid request
shall be borne by the Company. Such expenses shall
be deducted from the amounts due by the Company
to the Director(s) who have defaulted their duties.
(iv) Procedures for putting forward proposals
at a general meeting

In overseeing and monitoring the business operation
of the Company, the Shareholders have the right to
put forward proposals and raise inquiries. Shareholders
individually or together holding 3% or more of the
Company's voting Shares have the right to put up
ad- hoc proposals in writing to the Company ten days
before the holding of the general meeting, and the
Company shall include such ad-hoc proposals into the
agenda for such general meeting.

The contents of the proposals to be raised shall be
within the scope of duties of the general meetings.
It shall have a clear topic and specific matters to be
resolved on, and shall be in compliance with relevant
requirements of the laws, administrative regulations
and the Articles of Association.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

In 2017, certain amendments were made to the Articles of
Association in connection with the relevant articles of scope
of business and shareholders’ general meeting to reflect the
needs of the Company’s development after Listing. These
amendments were duly passed by the Shareholders at the
extraordinary general meetings of the Company held on
5 December 2017. For details of the amendments to the
Articles of Association, please refer to the announcements
and circulars of the Company dated 20 October 2017. Save
as disclosed above, there was no change in the Articles of
Association during the Year.

The Articles of Association are available on the respective
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a well-established integrated atmospheric
pollution control solution provider, with a primary focus
on particulate emission control by offering mega-size
precipitators to customers in various industries. During the
Year, the Group mainly offers three types of precipitators:
electrostatic precipitators, bag filter precipitators and
electrostatic-bag composite precipitators.

The principal activities and other particulars of the Company's
subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the Financial Statements.

FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS

The Group's financial position as at 31 December 2017 and
the Group's profit for the Year are set out in the section
headed “Financial Highlights” above in this annual report.

A discussion and analysis of the Group's performance during
the Year and the key factors affecting its financial position
and results are set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” above in this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for
the last five financial years is set out in the section headed
“Five-Year Financial Summary"” below in this annual report.
This summary does not form part of the audited Financial
Statements.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final
dividends for the Year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(I) Particulars of the transactions

Hereinbelow are a list of the connected transactions
entered into by the Company or members of the
Group with connected parties that continued upon
Listing and were disclosed in the prospectus dated
24 September 2015 prepared for the purpose of the
Listing (“Prospectus”) with no further changes after
implementation except as provided herein otherwise.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as lessee, entered into
a tenancy agreement ending on 31 December 2017 with
Zhejiang Qinuo Machinery Co., Ltd* (HT/I& M AR 2 A,
“Zhejiang Qinuo”) (formerly known as Zhejiang Jiasheng
New Materials Co., Ltd.* (/T3 #MEIARAF]), as lessor
and a non wholly-owned subsidiary of TGL, for use as office
premises and planned for production purpose (“Zhejiang
Qinuo Office Lease Agreement”). Reason for entering into
the Zhejiang Qinuo Office Lease Agreement was that the
Company mainly used the said premises as its office and for
planned production purposes, and any relocation would cause
unnecessary costs and disruption. The annual rental payable
by us under the Zhejiang Qinuo Office Lease Agreement
was determined on normal commercial terms with reference
to, and was reviewed by professional surveyors and valuers
independent of the Group to be fair, reasonable and consistent
with, the prevailing market rates of similar properties in the
locality. The Company would have the right to renew the
lease under the Zhejiang Qinuo Office Lease Agreement
subject to compliance with all applicable laws and regulations
of the PRC as well as the requirements under the Listing
Rules. The lessor also granted us an option to purchase
the premises subject to the terms of the lease, and such
option is exercisable in whole or in part with respect to such
premises. The price of purchase, where applicable, of the
premises shall be the higher of (i) the fair market value of the
relevant premises at the time of exercise of the option and
(i) an amount calculated by reference to the net book value
of the relevant premises at the time of commencement of
the lease, the rental amount, the leasing period as well as the
Group’s financing costs. The amount of total rental payment
to Zhejiang Qinuo for the Year is included in note 29 (a) to
the Financial Statements. The Group terminated the Zhejiang
Qinuo Office Lease Agreement with Zhejiang Qinuo on 1 May
2016.
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For further details regarding the
Zhejiang Qinuo Office Lease
Agreement, please refer to the
section headed “Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as lessee, entered into a  For further details regarding the
tenancy agreement ending on 31 December 2017 with TGL, TGL Office Lease Agreement,
as lessor and the holding company of the Group, with respect please refer to the section headed
to the office premises with a gross floor area of approximately ~ “Connected Transactions” in the
2,700 sg.m. situated at Xinle Village and Xinsheng Village,  Prospectus.

Paitou Town, Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC (“"TGL

Office Building"”) for use as office building ("TGL Office

Lease Agreement”). Reason for entering into the TGL Office

Lease Agreement was that the Company commenced the

use of the TGL Office Building three years ago mainly as its

office, and any relocation would cause unnecessary costs and

disruption. The annual rental payable by the Company under

the TGL Office Lease Agreement was determined on normal

commercial terms with reference to, and was reviewed by

professional surveyors and valuers independent of the Group

to be fair, reasonable and consistent with, the prevailing

market rates of similar properties in the locality. The Company

would have the right to renew the lease under the TGL Office

Lease Agreement subject to compliance with all applicable

laws and regulations of the PRC as well as the requirements

under the Listing Rules. The lessor also granted the Company

an option to purchase the TGL Office Building subject to the

terms of the lease under the TGL Office Lease Agreement,

and such option is exercisable in whole or in part with respect

to such premises. The price of purchase, where applicable,

of the TGL Office Building shall be the higher of (i) the fair

market value of the relevant premises at the time of exercise

of the option and (ii) an amount calculated by reference to

the net book value of the relevant premises at the time of

commencement of the lease, the rental amount, the leasing

period as well as the Group’s financing costs. The amount of

total rental payment to TGL for the Year is included in note

29 (a) to the Financial Statements. The Group expects the

total rental fees payable to TGL in 2017 under the TGL Office

Lease Agreement to be approximately RMB250,000.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as lessee, entered into a
tenancy agreement ending on 31 December 2017 with TGL, as
lessor and the holding company of the Group, with respect to
the factory premises with a gross floor area of approximately
46,700 sg.m. situated at Tengy Industrial Park, Xinle Village and
Xinsheng Village, Paitou Town, Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC ("TGL Industrial Building”) for industrial use (“TGL
Industrial Lease Agreement”). Reason for entering into the TGL
Industrial Lease Agreement was that the Company commenced
the use of the TGL Industrial Building three years ago mainly
for industrial use, and any relocation would cause unnecessary
costs and disruption. The annual rental payable by the Company
under the TGL Industrial Lease Agreement was determined on
normal commercial terms with reference to, and was reviewed
by professional surveyors and valuers independent of the Group
to be fair, reasonable and consistent with, the prevailing market
rates of similar properties in the locality. The Company would
have the right to renew the lease under the TGL Industrial Lease
Agreement subject to compliance with all applicable laws and
regulations of the PRC as well as the requirements under the
Listing Rules. The lessor also granted the Company an option
to purchase the TGL Industrial Building subject to the terms of
the lease under the TGL Industrial Lease Agreement, and such
option is exercisable in whole or in part with respect to such
premises. The price of purchase, where applicable, of the TGL
Industrial Building shall be the higher of (i) the fair market value
of the relevant premises at the time of exercise of the option and (i)
an amount calculated by reference to the net book value of the
relevant premises at the time of commencement of the lease,
the rental amount, the leasing period as well as the Group's
financing costs. The amount of total rental payment to TGL for
the Year is included in note 29 (a) to the Financial Statements.
On 15 March 2017, the Company entered into an asset
acquisition agreement with TGL, pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to acquire the TGL Industrial Building from
TGL. This transaction is scheduled to complete in May 2017 (as
per note 33 to the Financial Statements), upon which the TGL
Industrial Lease Agreement will be terminated.
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For further details regarding the
TGL Industrial Lease Agreement,
please refer to the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the
Prospectus.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company entered with TGL, the holding  For further details regarding the
company of the Group, into a power supply agreement ending TGL Power Supply Agreement,
on 31 December 2017 (“TGL Power Supply Agreement”), please refer to the section headed
under which TGL would procure supply of electricity to the  “Connected Transactions” in the
Company in the premises on lease from TGL under the Prospectus.

TGL Office Lease Agreement and the TGL Industrial Lease

Agreement in relation to daily operation of the Company’s

office as well as the manufacturing and processing of goods

which include the outer casings of the precipitators. Reason

for entering into the subject agreement was that the Company

commenced the use of the premises under the TGL Office

Lease Agreement and the TGL Industrial Lease Agreement

three years ago, and such premises are owned by TGL and

accordingly the power supply services registered with the

relevant power enterprises are in the name of TGL. In light of

the foregoing circumstances, any procurement for alternate

source of power supply would cause unnecessary costs and

disruption. Whilst no additional costs would be charged by

TGL, the amount payable by the Company under the TGL

Power Supply Agreement for the provision of electricity

supply was determined on with reference to the fee scale

implemented by the PRC Government. Payment would be

furnished to TGL on a cost basis on 25th day of each calendar

month in accordance with the actual amount of electricity

consumed by the Company of that particular month, and such

consumption amount should be confirmed by both parties to

the TGL Power Supply Agreement by jointly inspecting the

readings on the relevant meters on 5th day of each calendar

month. The amount of total utility payment to TGL for the

Year is included in note 29 (a) to the Financial Statements.

The Group expects the total utility fees payable to TGL in

2017 under the TGL Power Supply Agreement to be capped at

approximately RMB3,800,000.
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On 25 April 2015, the Company, as purchaser, entered with
Tianjie General Machinery, as service provider and the wholly-
owned subsidiary of TGL, into a processing service agreement
ending on 31 December 2017 (“"Processing Services
Agreement”), under which Tianjie General Machinery agreed
to provide processing services such as the processing of steel
to the Group. Reason for entering into the Processing Services
Agreement was that Tianjie General Machinery has been
providing the Company with processing services of consistent
quality since January 2012 and that Tianjie General Machinery
is familiar with the Group's products and requirements.
Further, due to the geographical proximity between Tianjie
General Machinery and us, the transportation costs are
relatively low. In light of the foregoing circumstances, the
Directors considered it would be in the interests of the Group
to continue its relationship with Tianjie General Machinery
on sourcing of such processing services therefrom upon
the Listing. The amount payable by the Company under the
Processing Services Agreement would be ascertained through
its regular contacts with independent suppliers in order to
keep itself abreast of the market conditions and accordingly
to ensure that its engagement with Tianjie General Machinery
for the supply of processing services would be fair and
reasonable as well as in line with prevailing market practices.
Furthermore, before placing any purchase order of processing
services, the Company would also obtain quotations from
comparable processing services that might be available from
other independent suppliers for the purpose of determining
whether viable alternatives of comparable quality could be
obtained in a timely manner and at the most competitive price.
The amount of total processing services payment to Tianjie
General Machinery for the Year is included in note 29 (a) to
the Financial Statements. The Group expects the total service
fees payable to Tianjie General Machinery in 2017 under the
Processing Services Agreement to be capped at approximately
RMB15,000,000.
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For further details regarding the
Processing Services Agreement,
please refer to the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the

Prospectus.
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() Confirmation opinion by

independent

non-executive Directors on connected
transactions

The independent non-executive Directors™®’ reviewed
all connected transactions as mentioned above and
confirmed that:

(1)

Note 1:

Such transactions were conducted in the ordinary
course of business of the Company;

Such transactions were conducted on normal
commercial terms or, if transactions available
for comparison were insufficient to determine
whether the terms of such transactions are
normal commercial terms, from the perspective
of the Company, the terms of such transactions
were no less favourable than the terms offered
to or by independent third parties; and

Such transactions were conducted in accordance
with the terms of the agreements governing
relevant transactions, which terms were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

All connected transactions have been confirmed by Mr.
Zhang Bing, Ms. Tam Hon Shan Celia and Mr. Jiang Yan.
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(lll) Confirmation opinion from the Company’s
external auditor on connected transactions

66

Having reviewed the connected transactions disclosed

in

this annual report, Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited

issued a letter to the Board to confirm nothing came

to

their attention that caused them to believe such

connected transactions:

(1)

(2)

not having been approved by the Board;

not having been carried out, in all material
respects, based on the pricing policy of the
Company (if the transaction involves provision
of goods or services by the Company);

not having been carried out, in all material
respects, in accordance with terms of agreements
governing the relevant transactions; and

having exceeded the caps as disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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(IV) Related party/connected transactions in (IV) AAFRAFELEZMERRH
BNEBS, HERS

note 33 to the audited financial statements
of the Company for the Year

Out of the list of the related party/connected
transactions set out in note 33 to the Financial
Statements, the following transactions constitute
connected transactions for the purpose of Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules under which the requirements
have been fully complied with. Details of the said
compliance are as follows:

B R T FE33VRARE 7 R R 5 )
B THRZBRETRANE T HAZD
ER S WEREETABRE - 261K

BRI

Whether or not

constituting connected
Type of Agreement for  transaction or continuing
connected the connected  connected transaction

Details of the connected

Whether or not in compliance with
the disclosure requirements under

Connected party transaction transactions (connected relationship) transaction Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
BERS REBEBERZAAE RECAALTRAETMAS
BER o4l BER SIS BERS (BERR) BERSHE NRERE
TGL Lease TGL Office Lease  Continuing connected Lease of premises to the ~ Yes
Agreement transaction (a Controlling ~ Company for use as its (exempt from the circular and
Shareholder) office building the independent Shareholders'

TGL ik TGLEAZHE  BEEERH(R-ERR
e ®)

ARAERNERIERLE
i

approval requirements but subject

to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the Listing
Rules, having taken into account

the aggregated annual transaction
amount under the Zhejiang Qinuo
Office Lease Agreement, the TGL
Office Lease Agreement and the TGL
Industrial Lease Agreement in light
of similarity in their nature)

=]
E

(BREERNUREATRIFERR
=MED  TCLHAZRERER
TOLIXRERENEER BT &
B TRAIS14A 760 () EER S E
TRURERES BT EAETE
# FEEMRAGET)
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Whether or not
constituting connected
Type of Agreement for  transaction or continuing
connected the connected  connected transaction
Connected party transaction transactions (connected relationship)
BERS REBBBERZNSE
BEn ol BERS S BERS (BERR)
TGL Lease TGL Industrial Continuing connected
Lease Agreement  transaction (a Controlling
Shareholder)
T6L e TOLIXHERE #
R)
Note:

68

Details of the connected

Whether or not in compliance with
the disclosure requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
RACHALARAETHAZ
MRERE

asset acquisition agreement entered into on 15 March 2017.

TERES  MAATRE-FtEZATRRTUMEERBRARTCLERRRTCLIZ A% - R-F—LFRARTCLEL L -

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd

Lease of premises to the
Company for industrial use

BEERA(A—ERE ARAEENEFIZRE

Yes

(exempt from the circular and

the independent Shareholders’
approval requirements but subject

to the reporting, annual review and
announcement requirements pursuant
to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the Listing
Rules, having taken into account

the aggregated annual transaction
amount under the Zhejiang Qinuo
Office Lease Agreement, the TGL
Office Lease Agreement and the TGL
Industrial Lease Agreement in light
of similarity in their nature)

=]
E

(ERNEERImEAIIR RN
=HERH  TOLHAZRERZER
TOLIXHERZENFERHLE - &
B LEHRAE14A.76(2) 0 EER G B
FRARBIREI ST AL T
4 EEERRAGRE)

The Group is expected to terminate the subject agreement with TGL in May 2017 upon completion of the acquisition of the TGL Industrial Building from TGL by the Company as per the
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EEEWE
Whether or not
constituting connected
Type of Agreement for  transaction or continuing Whether or not in compliance with
connected the connected  connected transaction  Details of the connected  the disclosure requirements under
Connected party transaction transactions (connected relationship) ~transaction Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
BERS REBBBERZNSE RACHALARAETHAZ
BEn ol BERS S BERS (BERR) BERSHE MRERE
TGL Supply of  TGL Power Supply Continuing connected Supply of electricity to the ~ Yes
utilities Agreement transaction (a Controlling  Company in the premises  (being a continuing connected
Shareholder) on lease from TGL under  transaction on buying of consumer
the TGL Office Lease services exempt from the reporting,
Agreement and the TGL annual review, announcement,
Industrial Lease Agreement  circular and the independent
in relation to daily operation ~ Shareholders approval requirements
of the Company's office as  pursuant to Rule 14A.97 of the
well as the manufacturing  Listing Rules)
and processing of certain
goods
T6L REAA  TOLEERE REBERS(A-BRE RARABETGLELEHE =
£ 3 R) BERTGLIZEERER (AREHERENEETERS B
TCLERMMERES N - BETRASUATEERLETE
WERARHAZAREE # FEBH 06 BRREUR
NEERMIETERZE  FHERR)
Tianjie General Provision of  Processing Continuing connected Provision of processing Yes
Machinery services Services transaction (a subsidiary of ~services, such as the (exempt from the circular and
Agreement a Controlling Shareholder)  processing of steel, to the  the independent Shareholders’
Group approval requirements but subject
to the reporting, annual review
and announcement requirements
pursuant to Rule 14A.76 (2)(a) of the
Listing Rules)
RZBARE RERE  NIRBGE AASEREANMIEM =

RERERA(A— B
ol

IR#%
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The registration of the transfer of Shares will be suspended
from 16 May 2018 to 15 June 2018 (both days inclusive)
in order to ascertain the Shareholders’ entitlement to the
attendance in the annual general meeting to be convened
for the Year (“2017 AGM"). All Shareholders who wish to
attend the 2017 AGM must deliver their properly completed
H Shares transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates to the Registrar of H Shares in Hong Kong, Tricor
Investor Services Limited, Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
15 May 2018, for registration.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the Group's sales to its five largest customers
and its largest customer accounted for 34.0% and 12.6%
(2016: 43.2% and 10.9%) of the Group's total sales,
respectively.

For the Year, the Group’s purchases from its five largest
suppliers and its largest supplier accounted for 31.7% and
11.1% (2016: 32.9% and 9.8%) of the Group's total cost
of sales, respectively.

During the Year, none of the Directors, their close associates
nor the Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge and belief
of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued capital) had any interest in any of the Group's five
largest customers and suppliers.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
AND CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and construction in progress during the Year are set out in
notes 15 to the Financial Statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 27 to the Financial
Statements.

RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE
RESERVES

Details of movement in the reserves of the Group during the
Year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 92 of this annual report.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
PRC Company Law (B2 &]7%), amounted to approximately
RMB315.9 million.

BANK LOANS

Details of bank loans of the Group as at 31 December 2017
are set out in note 25 to the Financial Statements.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S
SECURITIES

At no time during the Year was the Company, or any of
its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors, Supervisors or chief executive of the Company
or their respective associates or close associates (as
respectively defined under the Listing Rules) to have any
right to subscribe for securities of the Company or any of
its associated corporations as defined in the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO") or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition
of Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other
body corporate.
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DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and the Supervisors being in office during the
Year and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Bian Yu (Chairman)
Mr. Bian Weican
Ms. Bian Shu

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Bian Jianguang
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan
Mr. Chen Jiancheng (newly appointed on 5 December 2017)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Fung Kui Kei (newly appointed on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Yu Zhao Fei (newly appointed on 30 March 2018)
Mr. Zhang Bing

Supervisors

Mr. Chen Xinhua
Mr. Fu Jun
Mr. Fang Zhiguo

BOARD OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of each of the Directors, the Supervisors
and senior management members of the Company are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” above in this annual
report.

CONFIRMATION ON INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation on independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the Company
considers all independent non-executive Directors are
independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTER OF
APPOINTMENTS

Each of the executive Directors and non-executive Directors
entered into a service contract with the Company on the
respective appointment date.

Mr. Fung Kui Kei and Mr. Yu Zhao Fei entered into a
service contract with the Company on 30 March 2018.The
principal particulars of these service contracts and letters
of appointment are (a) for a term commencing from the
respective effective dates of their appointment until the
day on which the next general meeting of the Shareholders
for re-election of Directors is held, and (b) are subject to
termination in accordance with their respective terms.

As required under the Opinions on Further Promotion
of Standardising Operations and Intensifying Reform of
Overseas Listed Companies (Guojingmaogai No. [1999]230),
the Supervisory Committee shall be with external Supervisors
comprising more than half of its composition, among whom
Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo are independent.

None of the Directors and the Supervisors had entered
into a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors and the Supervisors had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during or
subsisted at the end of the Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee were set up for, among others, reviewing
and making recommendations on remuneration policy and
scheme for directors, supervisors, senior management and
employees, taking into account salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the
Directors and performance of the Group.

The Company has not adopted any share award scheme or
share option scheme.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND FIVE HIGHEST-PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors, the Supervisors
and five highest-paid individuals are set out in notes 11 and
12 to the Financial Statements, under which the bonuses
paid to or otherwise receivable by the relevant individuals
form part of the item “Salaries, allowances and benefits in
kind"”. During the Year, no amounts were paid to or received
by any of the relevant individuals (i) as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Company and (i) as compensation
for loss of any office in connection with the management
of the affairs of any member of the Group.

PENSION SCHEMES

Particulars of the pension schemes of the Group are set out
in note 11 to the Financial Statements.
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CHANGES TO INFORMATION IN
RESPECT OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

Save as disclosed in the section headed "Biographies of
Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” above in
this annual report, there were no changes during the Year
to any information required to be disclosed by the Directors
and the Supervisors pursuant to paragraph (a) to (e) and (g)
of Rule 13.51 (2) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and chief executive’s interest and/or
short position in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of each of the Directors and chief executive of the Company
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures (including
ordinary shares subscribed for and paid up in Renminbi, i.e.
“Domestic Shares”, and overseas listed foreign shares
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and traded
in Hong Kong dollars, i.e. “H Shares”) of the Company and
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Listing Rules were as follows:

REATHRLXIES  EFREREERME]
— R EEN - AFE - BEETENEHA

BREENEERE EMARBIE13.51(2)F @ E(e)
QR EHIERE -

%

EERERTBRAERAQTNKRS - 18
BARORESHERR KR

RZE—+F+ZA=+—H  JFEEFEEAR
AR BITHABRA R B R EEA A EE(E
ERBFRBAEKROIEXVES) BN - HERS
FEF(BEUIARERBERHAZHERER - B
[RER AR E KRB RFTER ET I AS T
R SRIEIN ETINERL - BITHAR ) AP 8k A A2 8%
RARBIMBIERES LEAE KRG EI52EMN IR ERF
EMELMAERE AR - BRE ETREI
BAIRE M B A T MR TR R RO B a0
T

1. Long position in respect of domestic shares of the 1. RZZE—tF+_A=+—HRARFR
Company (“Domestic Shares”) as at 31 December ER((RERDBFENTE -
2017:
Approximate % Approximate %
Capacity/Nature Number of of total issued of Company'’s
Name of Director of interest Domestic Shares ~ Domestic Shares share capital
HERTHEREH LY YNCTEN
£ 5/ BRME RERHA BB 2 (%) BN E 2 (%)
Mr. Bian Yu (Note 1) Beneficial owner 13,671,000 13.67 10.13
BFEEE(MHT) BRBEEA
Interest in a controlled 46,169,100 46.17 34.20
corporation (Note 2)
REHEEER (f22)
Mr. Bian Jianguang (Note 1) Beneficial owner 6,843,000 6.84 5.07
BEAEEMET) ERMEA
Interest in a controlled 46,169,100 46.17 34.20

corporation (Note 2)

Tl EER R (Hi22)
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Approximate %

Approximate %
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Capacity/Nature Number of of total issued of Company'’s
Name of Director of interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares share capital
HERTRHEREY EARAFRE
EEpP 5/ BEME WERHE R A 2 H (%) BN E 2 (%)
Mr. Bian Weican Beneficial owner 1,851,000 1.85 1.37
BREEEE BHBAA
Ms. Bian Shu (Note 1) Beneficial owner 3,933,000 3.93 2.91
BT (i) ERMEA
Interest in a controlled 46,169,100 46.17 34.20
corporation (Note 2)
R EE R (f52)
Mr. Chen Jiancheng (Note 1) Beneficial owner 1,851,000 1.85 1.37
BB (it T) EREA
Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan (Note 3)  Family interest of spouse 50,102,100 50.10 37.11
BEREFA(MHES) B BNRIEER
Notes: et -
1. The Company is held as to approximately 34.20% by TGL, 1. RARATGLEAX34.20% K  HIEFR

approximately 10.13% by Mr. Bian Yu, approximately 5.07% by
Mr. Bian Jianguang, approximately 1.37% by Mr. Bian Weican,
approximately 2.91% by Ms. Bian Shu and approximately
1.37% by Mr. Chen Jiancheng. TGL is held as to approximately
64.08% by Mr. Bian Yu, approximately 22.81% by Mr. Bian

Jianguang and approximately 13.11% by Ms. Bian Shu.

The disclosed interest represents the interest in the Company 2.
held by TGL which is in turn approximately 64.08% owned
by Mr. Bian Yu, approximately 22.81% owned by Mr. Bian
Jianguang and approximately 13.11% owned by Ms. Bian Shu.
Therefore, Mr. Bian Yu, Mr. Bian Jianguang and Ms. Bian Shu
are deemed to be interested in TGL's interest in the Company
by virtue of the SFO. The indirect interests in the Company's
share capital owned by Mr. Bian Yu, Mr. Bian Jianguang and Ms.
Bian Shu via their respective interests in TGL are approximately

21.92%, 7.80% and 4.48% respectively.

Mr. Zhang Yuanyuan, the spouse of Ms. Bian Shu, is deemed 3.
to be interested in Ms. Bian Shu's interest in the Company by

virtue of the SFO.

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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EREXRERERLUTOER - Bt - REFE
FERHEGRD  EREFERAANEKRLL
FRFFHAR A B R A AR ©

AT RBZRFREBRDBR AT



Directors’ Report
EERRS

Substantial shareholders’ interests and/or short
position in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company

In respect of the register of substantial shareholders (not
being a director or chief executive of the Company) required
to be kept under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows
that as at 31 December 2017, the Company had been notified
of the following substantial shareholders’ interests and short
positions. These interests are in addition to those disclosed
above in respect of the directors and chief executive of the
Company.

1. Long position in respect of Domestic Shares as at 31

FERRRAQANRMD REBER D HE
BRIKRAE

RIRFEH R B KB EXVIBEII6IHBEFED
IZRR(AFFARBDEERSRITHRAR) A
gk R-FT—+tF+-_A=+—8 A&
BT EERRMER SRR © tEERIT
TEREUERENARREERSRITRAEN

% -

1. REZFE—tFF+-A=+—HpRAERFE

(BRA%)

EaBBA

December 2017 BRI E -
Number of Approximate %  Approximate %
Capacity/Nature Domestic of total issued of Company’s
Names of interest Shares Domestic Shares share capital
B BT PN
REREZW &N
8 tE 5 EatE RWEREAR A E 2 (%) A E 2 (%)
TGL (Note 1) Beneficial owner 46,169,100 46.17 34.20
TGL(fti#1) EnEEA
Ms. Bao Guo (Note 2) Family interest of spouse 59,840,100 59.84 44.33
Bt (f1aF2) PN £
Ms. Xu You (Note 3) Family interest of spouse 53,012,100 53.01 39.27
Rh L (f7:3) [REEERi Y
BERIBILRTBREEZ) Beneficial owner 5,727,200 5.73 4.24
REREAREE EREAA
(BRER)
MMNEREARDE Beneficial owner 5,318,200 5.32 3.94
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Notes: et -
1. TGL is directly interested in approximately 34.20% in the 1.
Company.
2. Ms. Bao Guo, the spouse of Mr. Bian Yu, is deemed to be 2.
interested in Mr. Bian Yu's interests in the Company by virtue
of the SFO.
3. Ms. Xu You, the spouse of Mr. Bian Jianguang, is deemed to h

be interested in Mr. Bian Jianguang's interests in the Company

by virtue of the SFO.

2. Long position in respect of H Shares of the Company 2. RZ=
(“"H Shares”) as at 31 December 2017:

TGLEEEB AR RAIA34.20%H)4E5s ©

RIBES R E D - BELTGETAENE
1B) IR BINB T S A TS AR A TR P B
s -

IR E S R - R+ GREK K
BB ) AR BB e 2 P4 ) K 25 B MRS o
B RS -

E—+tF T _A=1—HRAXRAHR
(HR )fF B4R -

Approximate %  Approximate %

Capacity/Nature Number of of total issued of Company’s
Name of interest H Shares H Shares share capital
EB BT PN
HER B EH &N
£ tE 56 RHEHE HREH A E 2 (%) BRI E D (%)
Shou Erjun Beneficial owner 10,000,000 28.57 7.41
s ExEBA
Hong Kong Joint Beneficial owner 5,297,000 15.13 3.92
Financial Investment Ltd Bz A A
Zhao Kaiyuan (Note 4) Interest in a controlled 5,297,000 15.13 3.92
HEIR(H4) corporation
X EEER
Notes: et -
4. Mr. Zhao Kaiyuan, the controlling shareholder of Hong Kong 4. i R % £ B Hong Kong Joint Financial

Joint Financial Investment Ltd, is deemed to be interested in
Hong Kong Joint Financial Investment Ltd's interests in the
Company by virtue of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALES AND REDEMPTION
OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

From the date of Listing up to 31 December 2017, neither
the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association or the PRC Company Law, which
would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro
rata basis to the existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, based on information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Company maintained the minimum public float of 25%
as required under the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETE
UNDERTAKING

Each of Mr. Bian, Mr. Bian Jianguang and Ms. Bian Shu (the
Controlling Shareholders) has confirmed to the Company
that he/she has complied with the non-compete undertaking
given by them to the Company on 20 October 2014. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
status of compliance and enforcement of the non-compete
undertaking and confirmed that all the undertakings
thereunder have been complied with for the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

For the Year, the Company complied with all code provisions
as set out in the CG Code.
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the Year, the Company was not engaged in any litigation
or arbitration of material importance and no litigation or
claim of material importance is known to the Directors to
be pending or threatened against the Company.

POST-YEAR SIGNIFICANT EVENTS

There were no significant events occurred or arising after
the Year with respect to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group
and discussed auditing, internal control and financial report
matters including the review of the Financial Statements.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements have been audited by Zhonghui
Anda CPA Limited, who shall retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the
re-appointment of Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as auditor
of the Group is to be proposed at the 2017 AGM.

By order of the Board

Bian Yu
Chairman

Zhuji City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC, 23 March 2018
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Supervisory Committee Report

EETHE

In 2014, the current session of the Supervisory Committee
was established in accordance with the PRC Company Law
and resolutions of general meetings. The current session
of the Supervisory Committee comprises three Supervisors,
namely Mr. Chen Xinhua, Mr. Fu Jun and Mr. Fang Zhiguo.

In the Year, for the Company’s long term interests and
Shareholders’ interests, the Supervisory Committee acted
in strict compliance with relevant laws, regulations, rules,
regulatory documents, the Articles of Association and Listing
Rules and earnestly performed their duties of supervision
as to the acts of the Directors and senior management of
the Company. The main area of work of the Supervisory
Committee in 2017 is summarised as follows:

I. MEETING CONDUCTED BY THE
SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Supervisory Committee convened two meetings
in the Year.

Il. WORK OF THE SUPERVISORY
COMMITTEE

The work of the first session of the Supervisory
Committee mainly comprised the followings:

1. Inspection over implementation of
resolutions of the general meetings

The Supervisory Committee exercised supervision
over and inspection of the implementation of the
resolutions in general meetings by the Board and
the senior management through observation and
attendance at the Board meetings and general
meetings. The Supervisory Committee is of the
opinion that the Directors and senior management
of the Company have diligently performed their
duties in compliance with resolutions of the
general meetings. No violation of any laws or
regulations or Articles of Association or any
act which jeopardises the interests of the
Company or Shareholders has been found in the
performance of the Company’s Directors and
senior management.
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Inspection over legal compliance of the
Group’s operations

The Supervisory Committee exercised supervision
on a regular basis over the legal compliance
and rationality of the Group’ s operation and
management in its ordinary work. It has also
exercised supervision over work performance
of the Board and senior management. The
Supervisory Committee is of the opinion that the
Group’s operation is sound and rational, and is in
compliance with all applicable laws, regulations
and rules and the Articles of Association. The
members of the Board and senior management
of the Group have conscientiously and diligently
performed their duties, and none of their act
would prejudice the interests of the Group or
the Shareholders.

Inspection over the Group’s daily
operating activities

The Supervisory Committee exercised
supervision over the Group's operating activities.
The Supervisory Committee is of the opinion
that the Group has maintained a sound internal
control system and made a great progress in the
formulation and implementation of its internal
work procedures, thus effectively controlled its
exposure to various operating risks. The Group's
operation is in compliance with the PRC laws
and regulations and the Articles of Association.
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Supervisory Committee Report
EHEGWE

Inspection over the Group’s financial
condition

The Supervisory Committee reviewed the
Financial Statements, supervised and inspected
the Group's implementation of relevant financial
policies and legislations as well as details on the
Group's assets, financial income and expenditure.
The Supervisory Committee is of the opinion
that the Financial Statements fairly reflected the
Group’s financial position and operating results.

Looking forward, the Supervisory Committee
will continue to carry out its duties in strict
compliance with the Articles of Association and
the relevant laws and regulations and protect the
interests of the Shareholders.
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ZHONGHUI

To the shareholders of Zhejiang Tengy Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd

ANIRRRERER D AR AE]

(A joint stock company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as
the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 147, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA")
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code"”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

84 Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.

(i)

Inventories

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of inventory for
impairment. This impairment test is significant
to our audit because the balance of inventory of
RMB470,939,000 as at 31 December 2017 is material
to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the Group's impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group’s procedures on ordering
and holding of inventory;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
- Assessing the marketability of the inventory;

- Assessing the budget cost of inventory.

- Assessing the ageing of the inventory;

- Assessing the net realisable values of the
inventory; and

- Checking subsequent sales and usage of the
inventory;

We consider that the Group's impairment test for
inventory is supported by the available evidence.
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(ii)

86

Trade and bills receivables

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amount of trade and bills
receivables for impairment. This impairment test is
significant to our audit because the balance of trade
and bills receivables of RMB619,345,000 as at 31
December 2017 is material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s impairment test
involves application of judgement and is based on
estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

Assessing the Group's procedures on granting
credit limits and credit periods to customers;

- Assessing the Group's relationship and transaction
history with the customers;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;
- Assessing ageing of the debts;
- Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the
customers; and

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure
to credit risk in the consolidated financial
statements.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for

trade and bills receivables is supported by the available
evidence.

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are
responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises all the information in the Company’s annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. The other information is
expected to be made available to us after the date of this
auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements is located at the
HKICPA's website at:

http://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/standards-and-regulations/
standards/auditing-assurance/auditre/

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P06353
Hong Kong, 23 March 2018
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

= A = NANI4 A N/
meEnMMEMETERE
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—FE—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AR® T ARBTIT
(Restated)
(E3))
Revenue g 6 792,152 956,432
Cost of sales $HE R (593,050) (722,399)
Gross profit EA 199,102 234,033
Other income HEmgA 7 14,109 13,284
Distribution and selling expenses DR EERY (24,707) (23,039)
Administrative expenses THAX (67,969) (80,486)
Other expenses HEmAX (231) (783)
Finance costs BhE AR 9 (5,821) (6,695)
Profit before tax BAnER 114,483 136,314
Income tax Frig#t 10 (31,319) (30,817)
Profit and total comprehensive RATEEANEEEREF
income for the year attributable RE2EBRALRE
to owners of the Company 11 83,164 105,497
Earnings per share BREF 14
Basic and diluted (RMB per share) BEARREEE (BRARE) 0.62 0.78
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ARE B SRR
At 31 December 2017
—F—+tF+=A=+—H

At 31 At 31 At 1
December December January
2017 2016 2016
—E—tF ZT-R"E R F
+=A=+-B | t=A=1+—A —HA—H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Bk ARETR | ARBTT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&71)) (&31))
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment mE - BB MR 15 86,906 47,401 42,878
Prepaid land lease payments BT HEERIER 16 45,001 18,811 11,549
Investment property BEME - - 16,515
Intangible assets B EE 17 389 275 195
Deferred tax assets EXERIBEE 26 25,479 29,487 16,005
Pledged deposits [REiECER 22 3,577 7,776 17,606
161,352 103,750 104,748
Current assets REEE
Inventories 2RSS 18 470,939 510,366 476,678
Trade and bills receivables BIRWFIERERER 19 619,345 660,039 482,968
Contract assets and contract costs & REE MA RKA 20 193,201 153,584 125,146
Prepayment, deposits and BNRIE - ZE Rk
other receivables H fth FEUERIA 21 44,544 39,668 44,421
Prepaid land lease payments B T &R 16 1,981 1,259 975
Tax receivable U IE 14,323 5,050 7,412
Pledged deposits [REESEER 22 86,169 56,815 75,272
Bank and cash balances SRITRIRE sk 22 47,706 160,830 209,936
1,478,208 1,687,611 1,422,808
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and bills payables BIRENTERENER 23 419,709 462,353 455,742
Contract liabilities ERBE 20 310,482 379,330 316,947
Other payables and accruals HiENRERERTER 24 109,379 123,852 79,538
Bank loans RITER 25 110,000 119,000 174,000
949,570 1,084,535 1,026,227
Net current assets RBEEFE 528,638 503,076 396,581

90
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e B ARR R

At 31 December 2017

—F—tE+—f=+—H

At 31 At 31 At 1
December December January
2017 2016 2016
“E—tF —T-RE E—RF
+=A=t+-B |+tZA=+—-H —A—H

Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
it ARBTR [ ARBTT ARBTRT

(Restated) (Restated)

(&71)) (&31))

Total assets less current liabilities EEAERGREHEE 689,990 606,826 501,329

NET ASSETS EEFE 689,990 606,826 501,329
Capital and reserves EXR#EE

Share capital B 27 135,000 135,000 135,000

Share premium R EE 239,064 239,064 239,064

Reserves G 28(a) 315,926 232,762 127,265

TOTAL EQUITY RS 689,990 606,826 501,329

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 147 898 £ F147E &G AU BHREREN-Z

were approved and authorised for issue by the board of —N\E=F=-+=HEEESE LSRN
directors on 23 March 2018 and are signed on its behalf by: WA TJ|ESRKEKREE -

Bian Yu Bian Weican

BT BEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

== N\ 7
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For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—F—+F T —A=1+—HIFE
Attributable to owners of the Company
ADEREAEL
Statutory Safety
Share Share surplus  production Retained

capital  premium reserve reserve profits Total

EE  RREE
kx  RGEE  BREE BE  REREH 2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL  ARETn  ARETT  ARETn  ARETn  ARETn
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-A-H 135,000 239,064 28,072 4,862 204,293 611,291
Effect of changes in accounting policies (note 2) &3t HFRMENFE (Mik2) = = (10.810) (231) (98921 (109,962)
At 1 January 2016, as restated RZE-R"E-F-B (E3) 135,000 239,064 17,262 4,631 105,372 501,329
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZENALE - - - - 105,497 105,497
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve AR RHEE - - 10,352 - (10,352) -
Appropriation to safety production reserve YRR LERE - - - 7 (777) -

At 31 December 2016, as restated RZB-RETZAZT-H

(B51) 135,000 239,064 21,614 5,408 199,740 606,326
At 1 January 2017, as restated RZE—+E-f-H (&) 135,000 239,064 27,614 5,408 199,740 606,826
Total comprehensive income for the year ERZERALE - - - - 83,164 83,164
Appropriation to statutory surplus reserve R AT RGRE - - 7752 - (7,752) -
Appropriation to safety production reserve AT EERE - - - 598 (598) -
At 31 December 2017 RZE-tF+-f=1-A 135,000 239,064 35,366 6,006 274,554 689,990
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

s =
l\‘/ : fﬁﬂi //HJE%
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE_FT—tF 1T _A=1—HIFE

2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
(Restated)
(&%)
Cash flows from operating activities RETHRESRE
Profit before tax A& A 114,483 136,314
Adjustments for: AT RIERE
Finance costs BB 5,821 6,695
Interest income B WA (4,528) (2,684)
Foreign exchange difference, net SN Z B FRE 706 (3,377
Depreciation on property, M - BENRETE
plant and equipment 6,466 8,207
Depreciation on investment property WEMENE - 477
Amortisation of intangible assets BB EH 185 109
Amortisation of prepaid land TEfS LA ESRIAEE 55
lease payments 1,619 1,117
Impairment loss on property, VI - BB MR ERERE
plant and equipment 5,694 -
Impairment loss on trade receivable S RWFIBRERSE 23,798 27,280
Impairment loss on other receivables H b e OB R B 1B 465 682
Operating cash flows before working LBEAFERILE
capital changes Rens 154,709 174,820
Change in inventories FTEEDH 39,427 (33,688)
Change in trade and bills receivables B S RWFIE R EREIEEE) 16,895 (204,350)
Change in prepayment, deposit and TEI IR « e RAEM
other receivables FEWRIE 2 B) (1,449) 1,274
Change in pledged deposits EERERES (25,155) 28,287
Change in trade and bills payable B RN FIERENZIREE (45,707) 6,611
Change in contract assets EREEZS (39,617) (28,438)
Change in contract liabilities aRaESZ (68,848) 62,383
Change in other payables and accruals Hittf eI RETERES) (14,528) 44,314
Cash generated from operations KEEBMELERS 15,727 51,213
Interest received B & 4,528 2,684
Interest paid =N (5,821) (6,695)
Tax paid BERHIE (36,583) (40,875)
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (FTR) FEXE
operating activities HEFHE (22,149) 6,327
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

X B=
l\‘/ . J—ﬁﬂi //Ibi%%
For the year ended 31 December 2017

BE—F—+F T —A=1+—HIFE
2017 2016
—E—+fF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
(Restated)
(&E51)
Cash flows from investing activities Eﬁxﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁlms
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE—RNEA (829) >
Purchase of property, plant and equipment & ¥ ﬁﬁ?%&?&ﬁ (53,363) (1,501)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME - BERZEERIE
plant and equipment 1,753 -
Purchase of intangible assets BEREEE (299) (189)
Addition of prepaid land lease payments — ¥r%7E{F + & FKIE (28,531) =
Net cash used in investing activities  RETEFTARSFE (81,269) (1,690)
Cash flows from financing activities METHEESRE
New short-term bank loans raised FTILEHRIRITE R 123,000 190,000
Repayment of bank loans BRRITENK (132,000) (245,000)
Share issue expenses BT A - (1,793)
Increase in prepayment, deposits and TERFIE - ek
other receivable H th & WK IE IS N - (327)
Net cash used in financing activities METEMARSESE (9,000) (57,120)
Net decrease in cash and cash REeRBEEENRDFEHE
equivalents (112,418) (52,483)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHReRBEeEED
beginning of year 160,830 209,936
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net [EXE &) 2558 (706) 3,377
Cash and cash equivalents ERESRBESEEY
at end of year 47,706 160,830
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BERESZEYWIH
Bank and cash balances SRIT MR 4 47,706 160,830
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

) 25 2
ARE B RS EER AT
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—FE—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd (the
“Company") was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China (the "PRC") as a joint stock company with
limited liability. The address of its registered office
is TENGY Industrial Park, Paitou Town, Zhuji City,
Zhejiang Province, PRC. The Company’s shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “Group”) were principally engaged in design,
development, manufacturing, installation and sale of
environmental pollution prevention equipment and
electronic products. The principal activities of the
Company's subsidiaries are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”), Tengy Group Limited, a company
incorporated in the PRC, is the holding company.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new
and revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") that
are relevant to its operations and effective for its
accounting year beginning on 1 January 2017 and
early adopted HKFRS15. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"); Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations.
The adoption of these new and revised HKFRSs
did not result in significant changes to the Group's
accounting policies, presentation of the Group's
financial statements and amounts reported for the
current year and prior years except as stated below.

—RER

HMIRBREMZBEODAERRAT AR
ADA—HEREARKNRE(HE]FE
MARZEBRDBRIAF - AREZMPE
BRUNPBENIEZEMERBERRRIE
HE - ARANROREEHERSHHME
BRAR(TBERZAr ) ER LT -

AREREMBRR(SREAIAEE]E
ERFRESRDARBRETEMNR
it FE  BUE - REREE - AARM
BRARNEZEXHHN G A M HRERM
34 -

ARBEF(EFRR REKEAR
RNAIRBEBRATR] - AR BEFEMKL

R BRI ERMBRE
2= A

RAFE  AEECRBETEGHHAE
(IBEEEAE DARMAAEEEE
e TRE-—T—tF—A—BREN
SR FE AR MRIERT BB M KW
SEANTERHFBREER DIARRER
MEBI B MEERFE G - BEFER
SRENBEFBYBRESERN( BRI
WEER ) FEGAEA(BEGTE
Al]) » R - BRTIXAAEIN - RNZ
EHAIREETTEVBREENTEE
BAKENGFERE AEEMBHRRD
2INRAFEEBEFENRESELR
BEREH -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

2.

96

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers”

Revenue of the Group’s environmental protection
equipment contract was previously recognised using
the percentage of completion method. Under HKFRS
15, such contracts do not meet the conditions of
recognising the revenue over time. Revenue of such
contracts is now recognised at a point in time when
control of the products is transferred to the customers.

2. RMFEIREEITERMBRE

228l #)

ERMBREEUFEISHKFFEH
W5t |

AEERRZBAROBENBETIIRE
TEDLTAER - REFEMBREE
AIF16%% - ZFRRAL TN A MR BIHER
WasH) Rt - ZERRNBRBRIEE
mEE ISR TR PR ER

HKFRS 15 has been applied retrospectively and resulted REBEBYPEABBHBEHREENZFE 1S
in changes in the consolidated amounts reported in the S BRUBREMEINNGEESELR
financial statements as follows: T &) -
31 December 1 January
2016 2016
—E-RF ZERF
+=A=+-—H —H—H
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R AREBTT
At 31 December 2016: R=B-RE+=A=+—-RH:
Decrease in gross amounts due from Y EREFPFIBRERD
contract customers 609,159 703,831
Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax assets ~ EEHBEELI, () 6,842 (2,256)
Increase in inventories FEEM 479,025 435,890
Increase in trade and bills receivables B 5 FEWGRIE R R L N 16,864 62,093
(Decrease)/increase in prepayment, BRFIE - ke REMEREIR
deposits and other receivables () /18 (2,747) 2,162
Increase in contract assets and SEREENABKALLMN
contract costs 153,584 125,146
Increase in tax receivable JE AR TE S 1N 5,050 7,412
Decrease in gross amounts due to ENEREFPFIBRERD
contract customers 111,979 89,523
Increase in trade and bills payables B 5 ENFIBRERNZERIE N 18,320 24,311
Increase in contract liabilities AREESM 379,330 316,947
Decrease in other payables and accruals HAth FETRIB RIERT B AR 87,804 183,804
Decrease in tax payable ANEAE 30,949 31,353
Decrease in statutory surplus reserve EERBBREERD 11,387 10,810
Decrease in safety production reserve TEEERBRD 116 231
Decrease in retained profits TRER 5 AR 105,956 98,921
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. MM REEITEBNBRE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers” (Continued)

228l #)

ERNBREEUNEISHEFEH
Wss |(4)

2016
—E—RF
RMB'000
ARETTT

For the year ended 31 December 2016: BE-_Z-—AE+-HA=+—HLEE:
Decrease in revenue Wasm 41,132
Decrease in cost of sales $HE AR 45,989
Decrease in other income H U AR 1,045
Increase in administrative expenses TR FSZIE N 16,579
Decrease in income tax FrASBER D 5,270
Decrease in profit for the year 5 R R A 7,497
Decrease in Earnings per share BREF) R 0.06

The Group has not applied other new HKFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective. The application
of these new HKFRSs will not have material impact
on the financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs, issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA") and the applicable disclosures required
by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS"”); Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKAS"); and Interpretations.

These financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention.

N6 B 4 R P M 2 AR AR B 1 R AR RR
M BAMBHREED - ERZEHNTE
BB EERG T e H A KB MH%H
RERERTE -

TEEFHE
REFBVBBRRNDEREBGTNAE®
([EEEMAE DEMBEM B RS

R RS EWARRAREERQR
G ER W ERERS o

ERMBBREERNBEEEVHREE
AT E B BEREED ) BEGHER
(IR EER]): KR -

ZEWBERRTIRESL K AE I REL -
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3.

98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of
key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgments in the process
of applying the accounting policies. The areas involving
critical judgments and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements
are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The Group has power over an entity when
the Group has existing rights that give it the current
ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that
significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its
potential voting rights as well as potential voting rights
held by other parties, to determine whether it has
control. A potential voting right is considered only if
the holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale plus the fair value of any investment retained in
that subsidiary and (i) the Company's share of the net
assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve.

FESHBERE)

RETABEMBRELERNERS MR
RAFBEEBRR LM - MERKEERE
REMAZFZ ST BRMNBREDFL #6 -
ZEYLARAHORIE LY ZFEAY
BHREMs BERNBR MMATHE @ &
RAMBHRRMEIRE -

REHEZEFEMBERREEANEIES
STEREREINAT -

RERE

REMBHRREEARERENERQFR
HET-A=1T—BHIENFTBREK - WE
NEEAREREENENER - E4%
BAXREZA2EBRMSHAZEE
AR EBEHERNBNZERS
HE - AAKEZHZER - EAKERN
BBENETHEB A EE AR X% (RKE
TEERQMOER)WENE - AIREE
HREREARD -

ERHEEGIREE  AEEeERHEER
FRUAREMATRBENEERSZE - A
BTERGHAIEHE - EERFAARE
BRITEBERZENBRAT  TEeERHE
TR -

MEARNEREMERHREEAEEE
BEGEAKR  EEEHIEKLEZBER
BHEAARK -

HEMBARMEBREZEHENFIGH
EBREDENHERERFEERNZNE
RAMEAIRBIRE R ER) AR R EHE
ZHBAREEFEERNEZMNBAREA
BV EMI SR T B A REAIEE RGN
BEREMEREEZR -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Consolidation (Continued)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised
profits are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation
(a)  Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of
each of the Group’'s entities are measured
using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Renminbi, which
is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currency on initial recognition
using the exchange rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies are translated at the exchange
rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy
are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
values in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates when the fair
values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income,
any exchange component of that gain or loss
is recognised in other comprehensive income.
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item
is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

FESHTBERE)

ma

BRH (&)

SERRRENR S - BN ARERE T
TS - RIERZRHECEREELR
IERVERE - REREBEINTIALHE - K
BRARAMEHBRRELERSIELEN
PARE(R SR SR B P ER MO BR — 2R -

HEBRE

(a)

(b)

DIgER ZHE

AEEZEEBNMHREANEEGNU
ZEREBMAETIBEEBERRATH
BER(THEEEDAE - KRAMBR
RUAARBZS - ZEERARAIN
MR E2REH -

BEERUBHRNRZ RAEH

SNER B AETER R ERR S B
HBTTERMRE BEER - IUINE
REMNEREENABRSREN
REERBE o W EHRRELNF
SREBENEBERAER

BAFEERAIMNEHENIEE
REDNDEBEERAFEEANERR

ﬁ o

EHEBHEANMNGHEENE MR
E U AFER S - S AIS S ER AR
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3.

100

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(c)  Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different
from the Company’s presentation currency are
translated into the Company’s presentation
currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates);
and

- All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in the foreign currency
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign entities and of borrowings are recognised
in the foreign currency translation reserve. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in consolidated profit
or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on
the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate.

3.

FESHBERE)
SR (%)
(c) HIeAERREITIE

I 8 05 SR A 7 9 2 M R
FIEASEERNEERMBANG
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices.
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance
are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is
calculated at rates sufficient to write off their revalued
amounts less their residual values over the estimated
useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual
rates are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%
Plant and machinery 9.50%
Office equipment 19.00%-31.67%
Motor vehicles 23.75%

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction and plant and machinery pending
installation, and is stated at cost less impairment
losses. Depreciation begins when the relevant assets
are available for use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

FESHTBERE)

BTFIEERIMENPRE - WX - BFE
K BT AR R AT I & MOBEE RS
BE o

ERBRERB B RREEN DR AERA
AEBEMZEBKAER FETER - &E
AT T ABEREES @ HERSE
MEEGRERBRME) - A HEMmsE
RRENEEHEMERER -

ME - BERREOTE TR T AMIEE
EfMSBERFSREEMNLLE - RMEFH A E
RERAERERETE - T2FROT:

Bg¥F 4.75%
5 M 23 9.50%
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RIrEE  AREAFHRNETENER
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3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment
losses.

Patents and Computer software are stated at cost
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives of 10 years and 3 years
respectively.

Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets to the Group are
accounted for as operating leases. Lease payments
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average basis. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour and
an appropriate proportion of all production overhead
expenditure, and where appropriate, subcontracting
charges. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

FESHBERE)
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the statement of financial position when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire;
the Group transfers substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not
retained control on the assets. On derecognition of
a financial asset, the difference between the asset's
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and the cumulative gain or loss that had
been recognised in other comprehensive income is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged,
cancelled or expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market and are recognised
initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment. An allowance for impairment
of trade and other receivables is established when
there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original
terms of receivables. The amount of the allowance
is the difference between the receivables’ carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition. The amount of the
allowance is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Impairment losses are reversed in subsequent periods
and recognised in profit or loss when an increase in
the receivables’ recoverable amount can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, subject to the restriction that the
carrying amount of the receivables at the date the
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the
amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents represent cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term highly liquid investments
which are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash
and cash equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument under
HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group
after deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting
policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and
equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless
the Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the end of
the reporting period.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded
at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer with reference
to the customary business practices and excludes
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a
contract where the period between the payment by the
customer and the transfer of the promised product or
service exceeds one year, the consideration is adjusted
for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a
performance obligation by transferring control over a
product or service to a customer. Depending on the
terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over
time or at a point in time. A performance obligation is
satisfied over time if:

(a) the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group's
performance;

(b)  the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is
created or enhanced; or

(c) the Group's performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time,
revenue is recognised by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point
in time when the customer obtains control of the
product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

Employee benefits
(a)  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as
a result of services rendered by employees up to
the at the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b)  Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged in profit
or loss represents contributions payable by the
Group to the funds.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier
of the dates when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits and when
the Group recognises restructuring costs and
involves the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until
such time as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and
used for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset,
the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation
is determined by applying a capitalisation rate to the
expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the
weighted average of the borrowing costs applicable to
the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding during
the period, other than borrowings made specifically for
the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to it and that the grant will
be received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised
in profit or loss because it excludes items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases
used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused
tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities
are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities
in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of
the asset to be recovered.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax is
recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current
tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties

A related party is a person or entity that is related to
the Group.

(a) A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(il) is a member of the key management

personnel of the Company or of a parent
of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)  The entity and the Company are members
of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii)  Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related
to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Company or to a
parent of the Company.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
other than investment, inventories and receivables, to
determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating
unit is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation)
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the time value
of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditures expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence
of one or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow
is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of
the reporting period or those that indicate the going
concern assumption is not appropriate are adjusting
events and are reflected in the financial statements.
Events after the reporting period that are not adjusting
events are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are discussed below.
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4. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

(Continued)

(a)  Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories
made based on the ageing and estimated net
realisable value of inventories. The assessment
of the allowance amount involves judgement
and estimates. Where the actual outcome in
future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and allowance charge/write-back
in the period in which such estimate has been

changed.

(b)  Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and
doubtful debts based on assessments of the
recoverability of the trade and other receivables,
including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor.
Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and
doubtful debts requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the actual result is different
from the original estimate, such difference will
impact the carrying value of the trade and other
receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the
year in which such estimate has been changed.

(c) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused
tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the
losses can be utilised. Significant management
judgement is required to determine the amount
of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and the level of
future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies. Further details are contained

in note 26 to the financial statements.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty
(Continued)

(d)  Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives and
residual values of property, plant and equipment
of similar nature and functions. The Group will
revise the depreciation charge where useful
lives and residual values are different to those
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

Additional depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or the residual values of items
of property, plant and equipment and investment
property are different from the previous
estimation. Useful lives and residual values are
reviewed at each financial year end date based
on changes in circumstances.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group's overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. BKEBERE#)

(Continued)

(a) ShEEmELER

(a) Foreign currency risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign
currency risk as most of its business transactions,
assets and liabilities are principally denominated
in the functional currencies of the Group entities.
The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign
currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure
closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. Receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the
Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.
For transactions that are not denominated in the
functional currency of the relevant operating unit,
the Group does not offer credit terms without
the specific approval of the executive directors.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial
assets, which comprise cash and cash equivalents,
pledged deposits, and other receivables, arises
from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by analysis by customer/counterparty.
There are no significant concentrations of credit
risk within the Group as the customer bases
of the Group’'s trade receivables are widely
dispersed.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills
receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables are disclosed in notes 19 and 21,
respectively, to the financial statements.
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5. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

(Continued)

BEERERE#)

(c) Liquidity risk (c) RBELRAMR

116

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term. All of the Group’s financial liabilities
are due within one year.

The maturity analysis of the Group’s financial
liabilities is as follows:

AEBERNBRAERERRA MEY
MBEEHL  BRELFTHRRS
- WmERkERERDESR
Ko AKERMETRABIN-FR
B8 -

AEESHAENIMBESTMOT

Total contractual
Carrying amounts undiscounted cash flow
EHE ENARBRLRELE
Less than
Total Total 1 year
G CEH PIME
RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
31 December 2017 2 —t&+ZA=1-H
Trade and bills payables BoORNTERERNRE 419,709 419,709 419,709
Other payables and accruals HitEFIBRIES ER 109,379 109,379 109,379
Bank loans RITER 110,000 113,236 113,236
639,088 642,324 642,324
31 December 2016 ZE-REtTZA=t-H
Trade and bills payables BORNTERENRE 462,353 462,353 462,353
Other payables and accruals Hit B RIESER 123,852 123,852 123,852
Bank loans RITER 119,000 122,891 122,891
705,205 709,096 709,096
(d) Interest rate risk (d) FZEREpz
The Group's bank deposits and bank borrowings AEERRITHERLIBITEFIZEE
bear interests at fixed interest rates and therefore FIEFE - AEAZAFEINER
are subject to fair value interest rate risks. B o
(e) Fair values (e) D¥E

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial
assets and financial liabilities as reflected in
the consolidated statement of financial position
approximate their respective fair values.

REBMRERE AR R KRR S B
BEMGRMEBEROMEEEZENA
FEwE -

AT RBZRFREBRDBR AT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

sre SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—FE—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

5.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5.

(Continued)
(f) Financial instruments by category

The carrying amounts of each of the category of

R EEE )

() ZERESHEHMIA

AEBSER BT ANRERRD

the Group's financial instruments at the end of BREELT :
the reporting period are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFIT
Financial assets TRMEE
Loans and receivables (including cash EZ R EWFIE (8RS
and cash equivalents) FIREZEEY) 780,157 902,140
Financial liabilities cRaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR EK AT EN SR EE 639,088 705,205
REVENUE 6. W=

The Group’s revenue represents environmental
protection equipment contract revenue for installation
and sale of environmental pollution prevention
equipment and electronic products; the invoiced value
of goods sold and the value of services rendered during
the year.

AEENRREAFEREMHERRS
APARBRETFERNWRRREARK
EEMNEREBELMRHREDH

B -

2017 2016
—E—t5F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT

Environmental protection equipment
contracts RREEER 778,757 952,897
Sale of goods HEE M 12,943 3,529
Rendering of services IRHR 452 6
792,152 956,432
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IN=RREET e b

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

6.

118

REVENUE (continued)

6. W&

3L

Disaggregation of revenue from PIRBRERRESRHWE -
environmental protection equipment
contracts:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Geographical markets HEm 5
Mainland China PR 759,189 934,583
Other countries EmBEIR 19,568 18,314
Total #Et 778,757 952,897
Major products FTEER
Electronstatic precipitator HERESS 542,574 663,857
Electronstatic-bag composite precipitator ERE A FREERE 88,836 108,717
Bag filter precipitator RAPREERS 44,376 54,307
SO, and Nox emission reduction B @R ERE D
(desulfurisation and et (B R E)
denitrification devices) 82,784 101,311
Others (e.g. Pneumatic ash Hith (MR ES)
conveying system) 20,187 24,705
Total st 778,757 952,897
Timing of revenue recognition Wy 25 T 5 Y By
At a point in time EX R
— Environmental protection equipment —RREBHEER
contracts 778,757 952,897
— Sale of goods —HEEm 12,943 3,629
— Rendering of services — IR AR 452 6
Total wast 792,152 956,432

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A I IS ERR M EE

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F—+F T —A=1+—HIFE

6.

REVENUE (continued)

Disaggregation of revenue from
environmental protection equipment
contracts: (Continued)

Environmental protection equipment contracts

The Group manufactures, sells and installs
environmental pollution prevention equipment to the
customers. The customers pay the contract prices
to the Group according to the payment schedules as
stipulated in the contracts within one month. Sales
are recognised when control of the products and
services have transferred, being when the products
are delivered to a customer. If the service rendered
by the Group exceeds the payments, a contract asset
or a receivable is recognised. If the payments exceed
the service rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

If a contract includes the installation of hardware,
revenue for the hardware is recognised at a point in
time when the hardware is delivered, the legal title has
passed and the customer has accepted the hardware.

The contract price is allocated to the performance
obligations based on the relative stand-alone selling
prices of the performance obligations. The stand-alone
selling prices are determined by applying the expected
cost plus a margin approach.

Sales of goods

The Group manufactures and sells environmental
pollution prevention equipment to the customers.
The products amount is repayable within one month.
Sales are recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
a customer, there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customer’s acceptance of the products and
the customer has obtained legal titles to the products.

A receivable is recognised when the products are
delivered to the customers as this is the point in time
that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

Y &)
PIFBRRECBOKE (&)

RIRZEE A

AEBZERAZFPHE RLRERRITH
DA - FPRIEA RAT AR KEFRE
KN —EAAARNAEEXNERER - &£
B o M RIS RO il i B g s (B E XA
%Eﬁzﬂq)ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ% fisd 5 S B P £ A Y
HW’%’HﬂH% SHERACREELEY
/T)\ 1hﬁmtﬂﬁﬁhtﬁ’]ﬁ&% - Rl e
RE HE\{/\ °

WERBRBELEEM  BHERNRERE N
RNZEEEEMEHEERUREZRFE
BANE (2 FERERR

ARERRBENEENHBBELEESE
ERMNEML - BUEBTIEAEIK AN
MBEITEEE -

i
Ofy
/m]?(

Jm ]
oo

AEEEERAEPIEERRTRADGR
B EReBRER—BARNEE  -&EE
mEHEEEEAIERXNTERZ
B) BEfiEAgEPERPEIERNR
IE? EAREFEERNEMNEG AR
P FEREHE o

——

T

EEMXNTEFE B ALK -
TLMMM:FH&Z (& (2N BB 3R AT A B A7
#HBRSN) - FEOERBEUEIE o
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IN=RREET e b

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

7.

120

OTHER INCOME 7. HawA
2017 2016
—ZE—+tfF A
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Bank interest income RITHBUWA 4,528 2,684
Government grants B Bh 8,699 5,839
Compensation income ERA - 285
Rental income HEWA - 430
Foreign exchange gain b H e - 3,878
Others HAth 882 168
14,109 13,284

SEGMENT INFORMATION 8. 7oHERN

The Group's revenue during the year was mainly derived
from environmental protection equipment contract
revenue for installation and sale of environmental
pollution prevention equipment and electronic
products; the invoiced value of goods sold and the
value of services rendered. The products of the Group
are subject to similar risks and returns and, therefore,
the Group has only one business segment.

AEBRAFENRETIBRELTRKNE
ERFGAMARBLRETERNRRAR
weERWE  HEEMmMEREERRE
HERBEOEE - AREEmERRR R
PRSEIRAEEL - Eitt - REEES X

BoEs -

Geographical information ih & & K
Revenue Non-current assets
g FREBEE
2017 2016 2017 2016
B2+ | T RF | ZE—tF | ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR | ARET T | ARSET | ARETIT
Mainland China el Eilnp:i 772,584 938,118 185,209 110,448
Other countries HibEIxR 19,568 18,314 = =
Consolidated total RE 1B 792,152 956,432 185,209 110,448

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is
based on the locations of the customers.

REJRERE - WeEHIRBEEFPAE
W27 o
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ARE B RS EER AT
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—F 5+ A=+—AILFE

8. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

8. oEERE)

Revenue from major customers: REFEEZEFHWRE :
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT
Customer A EPA N/ATE A * 104,607
Customer B =FB 99,459 | N/ATEM*
e Customer did not contribute more than 10% of the total * BRI EGAEEFAGRERABITEI0%IA L

consolidated revenue of the Group for the year

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. BEKA
2017 2016
—E2—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Interest on banks loans IRITERF B 5,821 6,695
10. INCOME TAX 10. FTB%
2017 2016
—Z2—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year SRR BEMEFTEH 27,311 44,299
Deferred tax (note 26) EEFRIE (FIFE26) 4,008 (13,482)
31,319 30,817
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was required HRAEERFAREERE BN BERT
since the Group has no assessable profit in Hong Kong A B AREEFEB e BE -

for the years presented.
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

10.

11.

122

INCOME TAX (continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax and the

profit before tax is as follows:

10. FTB % (&)

B8R BB AT RO BRI T -

2017 2016

—ZE—+tfF A

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETTT

Profit before tax TR A 114,483 136,314
Notional tax on profit before tax calculated 1% Bl % & Bt K5+ & F Al

at the PRC statutory rate AR B E IR 28,621 34,079

Tax effect of non-taxable income BEFHIBANTEEE - (2,042)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A HRA T ST 2 2,698 785

Additional deduction for research and T 5%)E B R REINDIR
development activities - (2,005)
Income tax for the year REEFEH 31,319 30,817

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

The Group's profit for the year is stated after charging

the following:

1. FREF

AEENFNRFEHER A TS RRER:

2017 2016

—B—tF —ZE—R
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Auditor's remuneration ZEREN N & 1,000 1,507
Cost of inventories sold FrEHEFEEHRA 593,050 722,399
Depreciation e 6,466 8,207

Amortisation of prepaid land TEfT Lo & SRIEE 85

lease payments 1,619 1,117
Amortisation of intangible assets B A B 185 109
Impairment loss on trade receivable B 5 EWFOR R EREE 23,798 27,280
Impairment loss on other receivables H B R EE1E 465 682
Impairment loss on property, plant and ME - BERRERERE

equipment 5,694 -
Direct operating expenses (including EEErRIESHN

repairs and maintenance) arising from KREYENEEREERE

rental-earning investment property (BREfE R EE) - 477
Research and development expenditure #2535 4,062 21,586
Staff costs (including directors’ BIXA (BIEEES

remuneration — note 12): Wages and B <& —F5EE12) -

Salaries ITERF® 46,874 44,124
Pension scheme contribution RIS EEIMEK 3,858 2,550
Staff welfare expenses B TREAMMX 6,937 4,145

57,669 50,819

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BE—T— - Ao — A

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHESTPAID 12. EERHEREFMA LS
INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of each Director were as follows: FEENHEWT ¢
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits contributions Total
Hek ERER
He HAtER a3 @st
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
P ARETT AR¥TR AR%TR ARETrR
Executive Directors HITEE
Bian Yu BF - 450 56 506
Bian Weican BREER - 163 49 212
Bian Shu Bk - 135 49 184
Non-Executive Directors F#HITESE
Bian Jianguang BEX - 150 - 150
Zhang Yuanyuan ERE - 135 49 184
Zhu Hong KAL 1 - 60 - 60
Chen Jiancheng PR 2 = = = =
Independent Non- BYFHITES
Executive Directors
Tam Hon Shan Celia EE - 260 - 260
Jiang Yan e - 60 - 60
Zhang Bing KIA - 60 - 60
Supervisors Bz
Chen Xinhua PR - 126 25 151
Fu Jun E1 - 60 = 60
Fang Zhiguo RE - 60 - 60
Chief executive BRITHAE
Qiu Jinxing islfeoF - 318 34 352
Total for the year ended HZE-ZT—+ &
31 December 2017 +-RB=+—H
FFEEE - 2,037 262 2,299
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

12.

124

DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHESTPAID 12. EEREEESFHMA LS

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (continued) (%)
Retirement
Salaries benefits
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
He Rk RER
Hwe H a7 SRl st
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
{p ARETT  ARETRT ARETr ARETH
Executive Directors PITES
Bian Yu BF - 486 21 507
Bian Weican BRE - 177 21 198
Bian Shu B 3 - 103 13 116
Non-Executive Directors FH{TEE
Bian Jianguang BEX - 150 - 150
Zhang Yuanyuan ERE - 166 20 186
Zhu Hong KA 2 = 25 = 25
Independent Non- BUFHITES
Executive Directors
Tam Hon Shan Celia BE - 248 - 248
Dang Xiaoging ENE 4 - 55 = 55
Jiang Yan == 5 - 35 - 35
Zhang Bing KR - 60 - 60
Supervisors E=x
Chen Xinhua MR 6 = 76 6 82
Bian Shu g3 3 - 75 83
Fu Jun b5 - 60 60
Fang Zhiguo FaE - 60 - 60
Chief executive BRTHRAR
Qiu Jinxing fed - 341 14 355
Total for the year ended HZE_-T—/~ 4
31 December 2016 +=-A=1+—8~
IFFE R - 2,17 103 2,220
Notes: et -
1 Appointed as non-executive director with effect from 1 June 1 BEZZ—RNEANA—BEEZTAEIRTE
2016 and resigned with effect from 5 December 2017. = YA-T—EF+-ARBRET -
2 Appointed as non-executive director with effect from 5 2 BT —tF T ARBRBRERIFNTE
December 2017. =
3 Resigned as supervisor with effect from 1 June 2016 and 3 BT —R"FAA—HEHIEE  WE-FT
appointed as executive director with effect from 1 June 2016. —NFAA-BREZERANITES -
4 Resigned as independent non-executive director with effect 4 BT R"FANA—HEFIBELIENTES -
from 1 June 2016.
5 Appointed as independent non-executive director with effect 5 BT —R"FANA-—BREZERBELIFNIT
from 1 June 2016. EE -
6 Appointed as supervisor with effect from 1 June 2016 6 BT ANFANABREZTAES -

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd  #T T KZIRIFERHZ D B R A A
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—FE—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID

INDIVIDUAL EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The five highest paid employees during the year
included one director and the chief executive (2016:
one director and the chief executive), details of whose
remuneration are set out in information above. Details
of the remuneration of the remaining three (2016:
three) non-directors, highest paid employees for the
year are as follows:

(%)

12. EER T RESFMALTEHES

AEE  AEARSFHMEETERE—RE
ERBBRITBRAB(ZZE—RF : —R2EF
EEBITRAR)  EHMFEEN LXE
B XREFE  HB=H2(ZT—RF: =
RFEEREFHMERNFMABLT

2017 2016

—E—+F —T—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T AREFIT

Salaries and other benefits e MEMEF 599 871
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iE/RIEF|EHEIL L 25 25
624 896

The number of non-directors, highest paid employees
whose remuneration fell within the following bands
is as follows:

FMNF T EEARANFEETRSFHE

EMEAWMT :

Number of employees

EEHE
2017 2016
—E—t5F —T—RF
Emolument band: [
HK$nil - HK$1,000,000 £ 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3

During the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals, including directors, as an
inducement to join the Group or as compensation for
loss of office other than those disclosed above. In
addition, during the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016, no directors waived any emoluments.

RBE-_T—LFR-_T-—RF+-_A=
T—HLEFE  BREXHAREEN A%

ERERNLAESH

MAL(BRES)X

MEAME - (FREEMARKEERL
AEBERBARE - 1o RBE-FT—t
FRZB-—R"FTZA=+—BLEFE "
MEEFTRETANE -

Annual Report 2017 3 125



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

VA N = /\ﬁﬁ%i&% M{TE\E

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

13.

14.

126

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2017 (2016:
Nil).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share attributable
to owners of the Company is based on the profit
for the year of approximately RMB83,164,000
(2016: RMB105,497,000) attributable to owners of
the Company and the weighted average number of
135,000,000 (2016: 135,000,000 ordinary shares,
as adjusted to reflect the impact of open offer on 9
September 2016) ordinary shares in issue during the
year.

Diluted earnings per share
No diluted earnings per share is presented as the
Company did not have any dilutive potential ordinary

shares during the two years ended 31 December 2017
and 2016.

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd

13.

14.

[ 9=)

EETERMBE_T—tF+-RA=1
—HEFERMNEMRE(ZZT—RE:
&) o

BREF
BREXREF

ARBIBHEBEABRGBEERERNEF IR
BRABRHBBABRBGFRNSENOAR
83,164,000 L( ZE—RNF: AR
105,497,0007T) * AR FARNB 1T E B
) 0 4 SF 19 #135,000,000 % ( = T — /<
F 1 135,000,0000% I @A% - £CH% DA
R-ZE—RNENANBETARBENY
BIHE -

BRE#BERR
REBEE_T—+FER-_T—XRF+-A=

T—HILEMESFE - ARmHEEAEE
BELak  WEZ7SREERT -
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) 25 2
ARE B RS EER AT
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—FE—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - BERRE
Plant and Motor Office Construction
Buildings  machinery vehicles  equipment in progress Total
BT BEREE RE BAERE  KRIE &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETt ARETL ARETR  ARET:R
Cost R
At 1 January 2016 RZF—7~F-f-A 21,825 23,412 1,055 799 6,444 59,535
Additions NE - 1,084 - 210 207 1,501
Transfers g% = 6,515 = - (6,515) -
Transfers from an investment B —IBR AN EEK
property 11,229 - - - - 11,229
At 31 December 2016 and R E-AE+-A=1-H
1 January 2017 k=5—tf-A-H 39,054 31,011 1,055 1,009 136 72,265
Additions RE 51,809 1,047 - 507 - 53,363
Disposals e - (2,034) - - - (2,034)
Transfers Bt - 136 = = (136) =
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tE+=A=+-H 90,863 30,160 1,055 1516 - 123,594
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZifFEREE
and impairment
At 1 January 2016 R E-A-H 7,689 8,062 393 513 - 16,657
Charge for the year TEELH 5,734 2,047 251 175 = 8,207
At31December 2016and ~ R-E—7E+-F=+-H
1 January 2017 k=E—t&-A-H 13,423 10,109 644 688 - 24,864
Charge for the year RERTH 2,878 3,123 219 246 = 6,466
Impairment for the year RERRE 5,694 - - - = 5,694
Disposals e - (336) - - - (336)
At 31 December 2017 RZF—tF+ZF=1-H 21,995 12,896 863 934 = 36,688
Carrying amount REfE
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=+-H 68,868 17,264 192 582 - 86,906
At 31 December 2016 RZE—E+TZA=+-H 25,631 20,902 411 321 136 47401

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group's
buildings with a carrying amount of approximately
RMB12,839,000 (2016: RMB14,462,000) were pledged
to secure bank loan facilities granted to the Group
(note 25).

RZFE—+t&F+=-A=+—08 ' 2£EF
HELS A ARE12,839,000t( ZF — X
£ AR#14,462,0000) NETEFEE
B RS BERNBITERBERH
AR (FI5E25) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

lal Statements

16. TS HEERIE

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR ARBT T
At 1 January ®n—H—H 20,070 12,524
Addition NE 28,531 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments B 4300 & FUIE # §5 (1,619) (1,117
Transfer from Investment property BIRE Y HEE R - 8,663
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 46,982 20,070
Current portion mehEl s (1,981) (1,259)
Non-current portion FETRENEL 45,001 18,811
As at 31 December 2017, the Group's leasehold ﬁé;g—{%+:\ﬁz+—a }K%EIE?
lands with an aggregate net carrying amount of ﬁ%@%@gﬁﬁ/\ﬁﬁﬁ7,6(3§,OOOE(:¥*
RMB17,668,000 (2016: RMB20,007,000) were pledged N 2 AR20,007,0007T) B LIBE
to secure bank loan facilities granted to the Group B DB AREERORITRRERAR
(note 25). HHR IR (FF5E25) ©
s
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Patent  Software Total
= B4 st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT ARETT
Cost B
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H 110 182 292
Addition NE - 189 189
At 31 December 2016 and RZZE—ARF+ZA=+—H
1 January 2017 E—F—+F—H—H 110 371 481
Addition NE - 299 299
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—t&F+-_H=+—H 110 670 780
Accumulated amortisation R EERBEEE
and impairment loss
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 42 55 97
Amortisation for the year NFEEEH 1 98 109
At 31 December 2016 and RZE—RF+TZH=1—H
1 January 2017 r=FE—+F—H—H 53 153 206
Amortisation for the year INFEEH 1 174 185
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=-HA=+—H 64 327 391
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+-HA=+—H 46 343 389
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RFE+-A=+—H 57 218 275
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) 25 2
ARE B RS EER AT
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—FE—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

18. INVENTORIES 18. &E

2017 2016
—ZE—+tfF A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
Raw materials B 19,927 28,070
Work in progress PR 30,741 24,167
Finished goods SURK om 420,271 458,129
470,939 510,366

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. ESEWFERERERE
2017 2016
—B—tF| —TAF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ETT AREFIT
Trade receivables H 5 WA 535,658 523,453
Less: impairment losses A REEE (78,906) (55,108)
456,752 468,345
Bills receivable eI R 162,593 191,694
619,345 660,039

Trade and bills receivable

Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing, and the
credit period is generally 1 month. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
balances.

The Group’s bills receivable are all due within one year
and are neither past due nor impaired. As 31 December
2017, the Group's bills receivables of RMB50,548,000
(2016: RMB68,034,000) were pledged to secure the
Group’s bills payable (note 23).

EZRUIERERE

BHRWFERRERERYH—RA1E
A o REE S REE R @ & YRR 4 15
BREES - EANEHRARREEETE
Himst - ARELEREE 5 RUWFRE
BT ER RS EMEREREE

AEEMBRBERIN—FRNEEH - B
BEARBEATARE R-_E—+F+-A
=+—H ' x&EEBE AR®50,548,0007T(=
T —X4F - AR¥E68,034,0007T ) ) fE W ==
BEEH  UAAEENEMNEZRER]IE
(B 5E23) ©
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. EZEWNREREWRE @)

(Continued)
Trade and bills receivable (Continued) ESRWREREWRE &)
The following is an aging analysis of trade receivables, RBEER ERNEERHE7NE S E
net of allowance for doubtful debts, presented based Wk TE (FOBR RER BB ) M BRER D AT T
on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR T T
Within 1 year 1F R 171,362 210,304
1 to 2 years 15824 187,705 186,013
2 to 3 years 2E3%F 76,889 63,747
3 to 4 years 3F4F 20,796 8,281
456,752 468,345
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 19. EZEWNREREWREE #)

(Continued)
Impairment of trade receivables g 2 BRWHRIERE
The movements in impairment losses of trade B HRWFIEREFENZBAT
receivables are as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARB TR AR T T
At beginning of the reporting period R HAY) 55,108 27,828
Impairment loss on trade receivables B S RWFBRERE 23,798 27,280
At the end of the reporting period WEHR 78,906 55,108
Trade receivables that are not impaired I SR HY B 5 B WK IE
The aging analysis of trade debtors that are neither BEARERI IR ERHRERENE HE U
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired SKIEMRRSITIT
is as follows:
2017 2016
—E—+F ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ TR ARET T
Neither past due nor impaired BE R 8 B IR R E 360,417 316,854
Less than 60 days past due #H60H A 41,973 52,998
Over 60 days past due #HI60H LA |+ 54,362 98,493
456,752 468,345
The individually impaired trade receivables relate to BRI EE S B IE R T FE R B E
customers that no longer have transactions with the IRSGNEFARE - ARERIKGKIETEEY
Group and none of the receivables is expected to be ARJYeE o
recovered.
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19.

132

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

(Continued)

Trade receivables that are not impaired
(Continued)

At 31 December 2017, the Group endorsed certain
bills receivable accepted by certain banks in the PRC
(the”Endorsed Notes”) to certain of its suppliers in
order to settle the trade payables due to such suppliers
(the”Endorsement”). Subsequent to the Endorsement,
the Group did not retain any rights on the use of the
Endorsed Notes, including the sale, transfer or pledge
of the Endorsed Notes to any other third parties. In
accordance with the Law of Negotiable Instruments
in the PRC, the holders of the Endorsed Notes have a
right of recourse against the Group if the PRC banks
default (the “Continuing Involvement”). The total
carrying amount of the Endorsed Notes of the Group
as at 31 December 2017 was RMB 116,096,000 (2016:
RMB124,254,000). In the opinion of the directors, the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards relating to certain Endorsed Notes accepted
by large and reputable banks with an amount of
RMB52,983,000 (the “Derecognised Notes”) as at 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB68,034,000). Accordingly,
the Group has derecognised the full carrying amounts
of these Derecognised Notes and the associated trade
payables. The maximum exposure to loss from the
Group's Continuing Involvement in these Derecognised
Notes and the undiscounted cash flows to repurchase
these Derecognised Notes is equal to their carrying
amounts. In the opinion of the directors, the fair
values of the Group's Continuing Involvement in these
Derecognised Notes are not significant. The Group
continued to recognise the full carrying amount of the
remaining Endorsed Notes and the associated trade
payables settled with an amount of RMB63,113,000 as
at 31 December 2017 (2016: RMB56,220,000), because
the directors believe that the Group has retained the
substantial risks and rewards, which include default
risks relating to such remaining Endorsed Notes.

During the year, the Group has not recognised any
gain or loss (2016: Nil) on the date of transfer of
the Derecognised Notes. No gains or losses were
recognised from the Continuing Involvement, both
during the year or cumulatively. The Endorsement has
been made evenly throughout the year.

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd

19.

ESRWFHEREKRERE®)

I #RE Y E 5 WA ()
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ZEMEN BREREEEME=ZF D

T OEENERSERE - BEB(FEA
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20. CONTRACT ASSETS, COSTS AND 20.

EREE r RARAE

LIABILITIES
Disclosures of revenue-related items MR EREMNIEE #E
As at As at As at
31 December | 31 December 1 January
2017 2016 2016
RBE—t&E | RZT—RFE RIZT—REF
+=A=+—-B |+t=B=+—8© —A—H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETTT ARETTT
Total contract assets BEREE 193,201 153,584 125,146
Total contract costs BERMA - -
Total contract assets and contract costs 4 R&E KA RIF A 193,201 153,584
Total contract liabilities BEAABE 310,482 379,330 316,947
Contract receivables (included in trade ARERZE GTAES
and bills receivables) RN IE R BN EE) 619,345 660,039 482,968
Transaction prices allocated to NEEFRHRTHRE
performance obligation unsatisfied BHE AL TEER T
at end of year and expected to FERRRBIERN
be recognised as revenue in: R 5B
- 2017 —tF - 537,880
- 2018 —NE 1,067,216 599,895
- 2019 —NE 1,387,284 580,025
2,454,500 1,717,800

Year ended 31 December

BEt+t-A=1+—HLEFE

2017 2016
—ZE—t5F —T—NF
Revenue recognised in the year that FHFFAERAREL
was included in contract liabilities REE RS
at beginning of year 153,121 114,985
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20.

134

CONTRACT ASSETS, COSTS AND
LIABILITIES (continued)

Significant changes in contract assets and
contract liabilities during the year:

20. EEEE - HAKREE#)

FEESREERGRABNERES !

2017 2017 2016 2016

—E—tf ZF-tE | ZZT-~F —T—RE

Contract Contract Contract Contract

assets liabilities assets liabilities

EREE EREE EREBE ERAE

RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETRT AR®TR | ARBTT ARETR

Increase due to operation in the year BEZRNGEE2E Mg 93,676 104,902 76,615 596,774

Transfer of contract assets to BRAREER

receivables U IR (54,059) - (48,177) -
Transfer of contract liabilities to BRAAABEENR

revenue - (173,750) - (534,391)

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration in exchange for products or services
that the Group has transferred to a customer.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer products or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount
of consideration is due) from the customer.

Costs to obtain contracts with customers, mainly
commissions to staff and third parties are capitalised as
contract costs because the Group expects to recover
these costs. Capitalised contract costs are amortised to
profit or loss when the related revenue is recognised.

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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21. PREPAYMENT, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 21. A RE » & R HE Mt E KK

RECEIVABLES b1 |
2017 2016
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBT T
Other receivables E fth pE WK IR 26,654 26,147
Less: impairment losses W OREEE (2,156) (1,691)
24,498 24,456
Prepayments TERTRIE 17,607 15,212
Due from holding company (note) FEYER A RIFIE (i) 2,439 =
44,544 39,668

Note: The amount due from the holding company is unsecured, non-
interest bearing and have no fixed repayment terms.

Impairment of other receivables

The movements in impairment losses of other
receivables are as follows:

Bret : BUWIERARFAASEER 28 REETE

H o FE W R IR E

His EUSIRRERBRNZE T

2017 2016

—E—tF ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFIT

At beginning of the reporting period R HAY) 1,691 1,009
Impairment loss on other receivables W FOBREEE 465 682
At the end of the reporting period WEHR 2,156 1,691

22. BANK AND CASH BALANCES AND 22. RITREESHEHKREBIEHER

PLEDGED DEPOSIT

At the end of reporting period, the bank and cash
balances of Group denominated in RMB amounted
equivalent to approximately RMB$47,282,000 (2016:
RMB$109,212,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC's Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations.

RBEBR AEEBUARBED
RITERESEHBREBRERODARE
47282000 t( ZFE—RNF: ARK
109,212,0007T) - AR F iR BINEAEE
<P R B HNE B R 1) o
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22.

23.

136

BANK AND CASH BALANCES AND 22. SRITREES#HRRCEFER
PLEDGED DEPOSIT (continued) (%)
Pledged deposit with banks have been placed as RITEEFFEREER - UAEREEED
security for bills payables issued by the Group. Bank N RIRRMEER - RITERBBEHE
guarantees are performance guarantees and made for RURBERAERFEHBERNNTREBARE
varying periods ranging from several months to five b BTEeRMBEmE YRS RH
years depending on the agreement of the contract, EHTFRHOFERE « IRITEB LB KT
and earn interest at the respective short term time ERIFENOCHREECZENEEEZEN
deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged deposits IR1T ©
are deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.
Bank balances carry average interest rate of 0.01% RITHEBTHERNER0.01% (Z2—R
(2016: 0.01%) per annum. F:001%) e
TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 23. ESENRERENEE
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETTT
Trade payables =) AN 360,092 388,045
Bills payable NS 59,617 74,308
419,709 462,353

Bills payable were secured by pledged bank deposits
of RMB18,736,000 (2016: RMB15,440,000) and the
Group's bills receivables of RMB50,548,000 (2016:
RMB68,034,000).

An aging analysis of the trade payables at the end
of the reporting period, based on invoice dates, is as
follows:

ENEEULEEBRITERARRE
18,736,000 L( Z E — A F: ARK
15,440,0007T) * A RAEE A EUEIEA
R#50,548,0000t( =T —RF : ARK
68,034,0007T ) 1B IR -

RBERR - EHRNFAENERAY
HRRER DATEA T

2017 2016

—E—t5F ZE—RF

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T ARBTT

Within 1 year 19" 301,933 358,031
1 to 2 years 122F 50,760 21,355
2 to 3 years 2E3F 2,508 6,643
Over 3 years BIA3F 4,891 2,016
360,092 388,045

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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24. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 24, HittEN AR B EH

2017 2016
—E—t5F A
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Other payables E R 5B 108,012 108,028
Due to the holding company (note) R A RIRE (M) - 1,204
Due to related companies (note) FER R R RFE (Kat) 1,367 14,620
109,379 123,852
Note: The amounts due to the holding company/due to related MfaE - FEATERIRARIFRIEFEAT BEEE A R 08 A EIR
companies are unsecured, non-interest bearing and have no - B REETEENRE -
fixed repayment terms.
25. BANK LOANS 25. SRITER
2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREBTT
Bank loans RITER 110,000 119,000
Analysed as: AT -
Secured BHEA 110,000 119,000
Unsecured IR - =
110,000 119,000
The secured bank borrowings of the Group were AEENEEBIRITERB AT SEIER
secured by (i) the Group's building situated in the W ARBMCRAPEIAEHETF R
Mainland China, which had an aggregate net carrying T—+F+-_A=+—BHNEEFERR
value of RMB12,839,000 as at 31 December 2017 BARE12,839,000t(ZFE—RF : AR
(2016: RMB14,462,000); and (ii) the Group's leasehold #14,462,0007T) : R(i) AN EELLAFEA
land situated in Mainland China, which had an aggregate WRHEELH  R_T—+F+ A=+
carrying amount of RMB17,668,000 as at 31 December —HHRAEELRERAKK17,668,0007T
2017 (2016: RMB20,070,000). —F—RF : AR¥20,070,0007T) °
The effective interest rates per annum at the end of RIWEBROBEREFNRT ¢
the reporting period were as follows:
2017 2016
—E—tF —TRF
Short-term bank loans: RHEIRITE ¢
fixed-rate Eijab P 5.00%-5.44% |4.79%-5.22%

Annual Report 2017 €3 137



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

re M HRAR N

T

For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

26. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the details deferred tax liabilities and

26. ELEHIE

AEBERAELCHEABREENFE

assets recognised by the Group. O
Impairment
Impairment  Impairment of Property,
of other of trade plant and
receivables  receivables Accruals Taxloss  equipment Total
HftEl ES R VEN
HERE SUERE Eit&R RERE  RREEE Eh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETL  ARETT  ARETL  ARETR  ARETR
At 1 January 2016 RZE-~E-F-H 25 6,956 28713 5,924 - 16,005
- Credit/[debit) o consolidated ~HARABER/
statement of profit or loss (BfFEBERTE) 171 6,820 7,140 (649) - 13482
At 31 December 2016 and RZF—AETZA=1-H
1 January 2017 R=E-t5-A-H 423 13,776 10,013 5275 - 29,487
- Credit/ldebit) to consolidated —HARABER/
statement of profit or loss (BEABRRERNR) 116 5,950 (8,126) 3370) 1422 (4,008)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—tE+-A=1-H 539 19,726 1887 1,906 1422 25479
27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. B
2017 2016
—E—+tF ZERF
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARET T
Authorised: JETE
135,000,000 ordinary shares of 135,000,000/% &A% 1B
RMB$1.00 each ARHE1.007TH LB 135,000 135,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRER :
135,000,000 ordinary shares of 135,000,000/% &A% &
RMB$1.00 each ARE1.008E @R 135,000 135,000
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27.

28.

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Capital management

The Group’s primary objective when managing capital
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance
at a reasonable cost. The Group’s objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern and to maximise the
return to the shareholders through the optimisation of
the debt and equity balance.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue
new shares, buyback shares, raise new debts, redeem
existing debts or sell assets to reduce debts.

RESERVES
(a) The amounts of the Group's reserves and
movements therein are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

27.

28.

R (#)
BAERE

AEEEREANTIEARRREAEE
AREKENEN  ERRRBKFEY
FEH)EE mm MR TS TE B LA R EF & TR A
BME - BEESKRRREHEDBE SEMELR
FEARENE - AEEEEEANBR
EREREETHELCLENEN  BRE
BECEB DGR - SREHREKA
(B3

AEBRBEBERRANEEERELE ARG
BABELAE - RERHABRELRE
B AEEREFABREIKN - BITH
B~ BB - SRMEY BLERBE
B EEENREETR -

(G
(a) AEENREESHEREEDHNEAE
L EMEERER MR ERED
REF -
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28.

140

RESERVES

(b) Reserves of the Company

28. f##E
(b) AAQTEE

Statutory
Share Capital surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve profits Total
EE

REE EXfifE  RBEE  REEN b

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AREBTT  ARETT ARETT AREBTR ARET:

At 1 January 2016 RZE—rE—A—H 239,064 3,303 17,158 112,585 372,110

Profit for the year Friafl - - - 103,525 103,525
Appropriation to statutory  ElAZ AT EHAGHE

surplus reserve - - 10,352 (10,352) =

At 31 December 2016 RZB-rE+-A=1-AH 239,064 3,303 27,510 205,758 475,635

At 1 January 2017 RZE—+&-A—H 239,064 3,303 21,510 205,758 475,635

Profit for the year FRiEH - - - 71517 71,517
Appropriation to statutory  EIREETBHEHE

surplus reserve - - 7,152 (7,752) -

At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+-A=+-H 239,064 3,303 35,262 275,523 553,152

(c) Nature and purpose of reserves of the (c) AEEREEEREN
Group
(i) Share premium () RwE
Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the BEFBEARNERSEENA

respective entities’ articles of association,
and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of their annual statutory net profit
(determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting principles and regulations and

the Company

BERMA > ARBRERF
BB AR AR L ESF
JEEEHFE10% RIBEHEE
FHR B BOE R E 3 KK SR A
MREFEBRER) EELERR
R BEERFBEESEIZ

after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to HEEBRRAMNS0% AT &

the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share

capital of these entities. The statutory E BB

surplus reserve can be utilised to offset

prior years' losses or to increase capital.
However, except for offsetting prior years’
losses, such reserve must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the share capital

after usage.

Zhejiang Tengy Environmental Technology Co., Ltd
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28. RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves of the

Group (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Statutory surplus reserve

Pursuant to the PRC Company Law and the
respective entities’ articles of association,
the Company and its subsidiaries
established in the PRC shall appropriate
10% of their annual statutory net profit
(determined in accordance with the PRC
accounting principles and regulations and
after offsetting any prior years’ losses) to
the statutory surplus reserve until such
reserve fund reaches 50% of the share
capital of these entities. The statutory
surplus reserve can be utilised to offset
prior years' losses or to increase capital.
However, except for offsetting prior years’
losses, such reserve must be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the share capital
after usage.

Safety production reserve

Pursuant to the regulation of Administrative
Measures for the Withdrawal and Use
of Expenses for Safety Production of
Enterprises in the PRC relating to the
construction industry, a subsidiary of the
Group, Tianjie Installation Engineering,
is required to transfer an amount to the
reserve account as safety production
reserve. The amount is calculated based
on the revenue of construction each year
and at the applicable rate of 2%. The
safety production reserve will be used for
modification and maintenance of safety
equipment in accordance with the rules of
the Company Law of the PRC and is not
available for distribution to shareholders.

28. f#E =)
REE#HELEERBNE)

(c)

(ii)

(ifi)

VBT EPRIE

RIEFERARDEREERNMAE
BERMAY > ARBRERF
BRI B AR ARLESF
EEEHANE0% RIEHEE
AR B BOE R B E 3 R K S AT
MBEFERERE) 2T AR
e BEERRBESEIX
FERRANE0% < A TEBR
REEATANEAEBEFEBR
HIBE o A - BREBHEESF
EERI - ARERZFHBER
RENMERAAR25% °

X EEFE

RigFBERZETEEBAN(D
EL2EEBERRBRMNERE
BHEEINRTE - NEERHE
RARBRERIRAMFHR
FBA-—FRBRERLELE
fth - ZFRRARBEFEER
HIL2%HERLLREE - 22
EERBBRERBELQRAN
RERRZ2RENLE L&
& - FARBRRDIK °

Annual Report 2017 &5 141



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

) + 2
ARE B RS EER AT
For the year ended 31 December 2017
BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Acquisition of a subsidiary

On 25 December 2017, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest of Pinghu Guangtong Machinery
Co., Ltd. (the “Acquired Company”) at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB5,832,943
to Xu Yajun, the independent third parties. The
Acquired Company is principally engaged in
manufacturing of steel structure.

29. mEBRERERMT

(a) WE—EHEAF

RZZBE—tF+ZA=Z+HA  &&E
BB Pinghu Guangtong Machinery
Co., Ltd. ([FTUEE A A1) #I100% A%
W WAIBILE=J7Xu YajunZ IR
S REHARKS,832,9437T - AR
BRATENFMAEBE -

RMB'000
AREFIT
Net assets acquired: Bl 8 & B A
Prepayment, deposits and TERFRIA ~ 12 e R EMEKGIR
other receivables 198
Bank and cash balances IRITMIRB 8 5,004
Trade and other payables B S 508 & E b R IE (3,063)
Tax payable FEA R IE 3,694
Total identifiable net assets at fair value R AFEAI#HIEEFERE 5,833
Goodwill arising from acquisition WREENEE
Consideration transferred EEERE 5,833
Less: Fair value of identifiable net B PTIEE T R R B =R E
assets acquired O VNSRIE] (5,833)
Gain on bargain purchase EERENE =
Satisfied by: LA 575 S AER
Cash RHe 5,833
Net cash outflow on acquisition of WEEKT B A IR &% R 5
subsidiaries
Consideration paid in cash LIR& S HHRE 5,833
Less: Bank and cash balances acquired & @ FTUBIRTT R IR & 4584 (5,004)
829
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29. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from
financing activities

The following table shows the Group's changes

29. mEBRERERMT )

(b) AMEZBMELANEELH

TRENAEENAFEEAREED

in liabilities arising from financing activities during MELENBEESE :
the year:

Bank loans
RITEX
RMB'000
AREFIT
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"FE—H—H 174,000
Changes in cash flows Rene2E (55,000)
At 31 December 2016 RZZB—RE+ZH=1+—8 119,000
Changes in cash flows HenEed s (9,000)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F+=-A=+—H 110,000
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BE—F

—tFF+_A=+—HIFE

30. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL POSITION 30. &2 B KRR E

OF THE COMPANY

2017 2016
—E—+HF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFTT
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RBRRIMIEE 34,620 28,787
Property, plant and equipment Yz - BB NEE 75,308 34,987
Prepaid land lease payments AR T EFIB 43,882 17,668
Intangible assets mEEE 389 275
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 20,692 21,535
Pledged deposits BERFR 3,578 7,776
178,469 111,028
Current assets REEE
Inventories "rE 435,108 479,554
Trade and bills receivables H 5 WA & e E R 592,011 631,436
Contract assets and contract cost EREBERERKAR 183,366 150,168
Prepaid land lease payments TEfS L EFRIA 1,956 1,234
Prepayment, deposits and FEfTFRIE - &i&ﬁﬂﬂ
other receivables eI FRIA 60,106 70,703
Pledged deposits EHEAER 86,169 56,485
Bank and cash balances IRITRIRS Kk 41,696 158,862
1,400,412 1,548,442
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and bills payables Z SR FHIERENER 394,869 452,274
Contract liabilities ERARE 296,036 377,659
Other payables and accruals HEMENFIERENER 29,189 42,181
Bank loans RITERK 110,000 119,000
Tax payable FERIBEIR 60,635 57,721
890,729 1,048,835
Net current assets REBEEFE 509,683 499,607
NET ASSETS BESE 688,152 610,635
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital &R 135,000 135,000
Share premium I8 1 (B 242,367 242,367
Reserves G 310,785 233,268
TOTAL EQUITY RS 4EEE 688,152 610,635

31. REE

RBEHR - ARERARBLEEAE
RFIRBE(ZT—RF: &) -

31. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group and
the Company did not have any significant contingent
liabilities (2016: Nil).
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32. HEAIE

RZEBE—+F+_A=+—8  BETA
B EHERMNAORRFEREEFRIELE

32. LEASE COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2017 the total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are

payable as follows: =N
2017 2016
—E—+F A
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBTT
Within one year —FR - 1,611
33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33. BMARZ
2017 2016
—E—+F A
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFTT
Transactions with the holding HERATNRS
company
Rental expense itk (i) 1,794 3,350
Electricity charges paid by the holding A RIKKRAEE
company on behalf of the Group SN ES (i) 2,367 3,186
Transaction with the other REMEBANRZS
related parties
Sales of materials SHEM K
Tianjie Special Steel R Y i (iii) - 575
Tianjie Cixingcailiao RORHE M (iii) 24 22
Payment by related parties on Bk KR ALE
behalf of the Group: SASHFOE ¢
Zhejiang Qinuo ALE (i) - 240
Services received: BEXRE
Tianjie General Machinery KR 3 FA A (iv) 13,107 16,969
Rental income HE WA
Tianjie New Materials FBFM L (i) - 430
Rental expense itk
Zhejiang Qinuo ALE (i) - 167
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BHE—E—+F+_A=1+—HIFZE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in
these financial statements, the Group had the following
transactions with related parties during the year:

(i) Therental fee was charged and the rental income
was received based on mutually agreed prices.

(i) The payments were made on behalf of the Group
based on the actual costs incurred.

(iii)  The sales of materials to the related parties and
purchases of materials from the related parties
were made based on mutually agreed prices and
terms.

(iv) The services received from the related parties
were based on mutually agreed prices and terms.

Key management personnel remuneration
The emoluments of the Company’s Directors, who are

also identified as members of key management of the
Group, are set out in Note 12.

3. B AR B (&)

BRREVBHRREMEOFAROZZIN
AEER - AREEERTEATRS ¢

(ii)

(iii)

HEeBRLHESRARETHTENE
RS A B AR

REBEENEEKAREEE AR
H o

(A BB 07 1 5 AR S R BB T BB B AT
FHIIREE T 17 7 Y BAR R AR T -

(iv) EXBEENREIRETHENE
R ARRAETT -
TEEEASNHMH

ARREE(ARTRARETEEEEDN
BB MBS M 12405, -
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34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 34.

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

The amounts due from/to major subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2017
are as follows:

RRBEEME R RAIFE

FEW FET X 2 M B A FMRIAREIE
o REREBEEERY -

NZB—tE+=A=+—AKHBARN
BB -

Place of Percentage of the
incorporation/ Company'’s indirect
registration Issued and ownership interest voting
Name and operation paid-up capital power/profit sharing Principal activities
HRAL/ &R RAREEHEREERR
£ REXEH BETRARER RER/BAMREAIL  TEER
2017 2016
= =
Tianjie Installation Engineering * The PRC RMBA4,500,000 100% 100%  Provision of
REMRZREIRERAR i AR 4,500,0007C installation services
REERRRHE
Tianjie Electronic and Technology * The PRC RMB2,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale
FEMARETRRERAT i AE#2,000,0007T of electronic products
WERHESTER
Turpan Environmental and Technology *  The PRC RMB20,000,000 100% 100%  Manufacture and sale of
HEERZRENEERAR i AR#20,000,0007 environmental
pollution prevention
equipment and
electronic products
HE RHERRITE
TREBRETER
* The English name is for identification purpose only. * R EMEHBT -

35. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED 35. #t/EGEMERK

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
23 March 2018.

REMBREER=-Z—)/\F=A=+=
HESEQHENMRETIH -
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T F B R &

Year ended 31 December

BET-A=1+-HLFE

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
“E—tE | Z2-5xF —FT-HF _—E-NF —ZT-=F
RMB'000 | RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT | ARETT ARETE ARETE ARETR
Continuing operations BECLEY

Revenue Yrzs 792,152 956,432 919,975 781,905 594,058
Gross profit EH 199,102 234,033 186,576 143,159 79,582

Profit before tax from REBELEERN

continuing operations BA R 114,483 136,314 134,399 100,168 35,026
Income tax expense FEHAS 31,319 30,817 37,934 25,979 9,193
Profit for the year from REFBLEEKL

continuing operations FEREF 83,164 105,497 96,465 74,189 25,833
Discontinued operation BRIHEEER
Profit and total comprehensive FRRFREERALE

income for the year 83,164 105,497 96,465 74,189 25,833
Earnings per share attributable to R AR

shareholders of the Company L EREN

for the year (LBRARHFIT)

(expressed in RMB per share)

— Basic and diluted — BEAREE 0.62 0.78 0.90 0.74 0.26
Gross profit margin Eyp: 25.13% 24.47% 20.28% 18.31% 13.40%
Net profit margin fRE 10.50% 11.03% 10.49% 9.49% 4.35%

As at 31 December
R+t=B=1+-H
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
2 tE | ZE—E C—Z-1f —T-ME —FT-=£
RMB'000 | RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR | ARETT ARBETRT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets FrReEE 161,352 103,730 104,748 129,027 88,229
Current assets MEEE 1,478,208 | 1587611 1,422,808 780,195 687,568
Current liabilities MEEE 949,570 | 1,084,535 1,026,227 668,460 559,224
Net current assets TEEETE 528,638 503,076 396,581 111,735 128,344
Total assets less current liabilities ~BEZERADEE 689,990 606,826 501,329 240,762 216,573
Net assets EEFE 689,990 606,326 501,329 240,762 216,573
Capital e 135,000 135,000 135,000 100,000 100,000
Share Premium i & (E 239,064 239,064 239,064 = =
Reserves [t 315,926 232,762 127,265 140,762 116,573
Total equity Enas 689,990 606,826 501,329 240,762 216,573
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